
Town Council - October 14, 2025        PAGE 1 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 

TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2025 AT 6:30 PM 
 

 

AGENDA 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pledge Allegiance to the Flag (DP) 

Moment of Silence 

 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

1. September 9, 2025 Town Council Meeting 

September 22, 2025 Work Session 

September 22, 2025 Closed Session (Sealed) 

 

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION - None 

 

BOARD UPDATES 

2. James Polk Site Update (Scott Warren) 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

3. Resolution 2025-16 for Surplus Items  

4. Fire Prevention Week Proclamation 

5. Domestic Abuse Awareness Month Proclamation 

6. Budget Amendment 2026-03 to Accept the Fire Department Grant 

7. Approval of corrected April 28, 2025 Work Session Minutes  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

PUBLIC HEARING - None 

 

OLD BUSINESS - None 

 

1



Town Council - October 14, 2025        PAGE 2 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

8. Substation Bid Award (Kevin Josupait, Electricities) - ACTION ITEM 

9. Name-Clearing Policy (Ryan Spitzer) - ACTION ITEM 

 

MANAGER'S REPORT 

 

MONTHLY STAFF REPORTS 

10. Public Works 

PD 

HR 

Parks & Rec 

Planning & Zoning 

 

CALENDARS FOR COUNCIL 

11. November 

 

CLOSED SESSION - None 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you require any type of reasonable accommodation as a result of physical, sensory, or mental disability in order to participate in this meeting, 
please contact Lisa Snyder, Clerk of Council, at 704-889-2291 or lsnyder@pinevillenc.gov. Three days’ notice is required. 

2



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2025 

 

      CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor David Phillips called the meeting to order @ 6:30 pm.  

 
Mayor: David Phillips 
Mayor Pro Tem: Ed Samaha 
Council Members: Amelia Stinson-Wesley, Chris McDonough, Danielle Moore 
Town Manager: Ryan Spitzer 
Assistant Town Manager: Chris Tucker 
Town Clerk: Lisa Snyder 
Town Attorney: Janelle Lyons  
 
 

PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

Council Member Chris McDonough led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 

Mayor David Phillips asked for a moment of silence for our First Responders, and a long-time resident of Pineville, Libby 
Boatright. Libby served on the Town Council numerous years and was a member of the Volunteer Fire Department. Please 
remember her and her family in your thoughts and prayers.  

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
Council Member Moore made a motion to adopt the agenda with a second was made by Council Member McDonough. All 
ayes. (Approved 4-0). 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
The Minutes of the August 21, 2025, Town Council Meeting and the August 25, 2025, Work Session were submitted for 
approval.  
 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to approve the minutes as presented with a second made by Mayor Pro Tem 
Samaha. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
 

Town Council 

Amelia Stinson-Wesley 

Chris McDonough 

Danielle Moore 

Town Clerk 

Lisa Snyder 

Mayor  
David Phillips 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Ed Samaha 

 

Town Manager 
Ryan Spitzer 

3

Item 1.



 
AWARDS AND RECOGNITION 

 
There were no awards and recognition. 
 

BOARD REPORTS 

Charlotte Water, Angela Charles, Director. Ms. Charles gave an update on the State of the Utility and gave a 
presentation. She noted that they are AAA-rated and serve over 1.2 million people. They are the 13th largest utility in the 
country. They had another year of outstanding water quality (zero water quality violations), which is very impressive for such 
a large utility serving so many people. They will be rolling out a major upgrade and an app for residents with a payment 
portal and a way to report issues. The anticipated date of rollout is this November or December. The Town of Belmont 
wastewater will be treated by Charlotte Water on September 16th. 

They introduced a new product, Renew Brew, which is recycled water from the McDowell Plant. These can be purchased at 
Harris-Teeter. The H2O Foundation was introduced and Ms. Charles said it is up and running. One of its missions is to 
provide a connection for qualified, low-income customers. 

 

Hazard Mitigation Report, Chief Robert Graham. Chief Graham oversees Charlotte Emergency Management. He gave a 
presentation and shared the process, risk assessment, mitigation strategy, plan maintenance, and public engagement. 
Anyone can obtain a copy of the plan online. His department functions as a crisis management unit in the face of major 
natural disasters. Mayor Pro Tem Samaha asked them to come back to explain the dangers of Silfab development.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Mayor Phillips asked for approval of the Consent Agenda item which consists of a Proclamation for Constitution Week, a 
Proclamation for Public Power Week, Resolution 2025-14 Declaring Surplus Items for Sale, and Resolution 2025-155 
Authorizing Advertisement of Bids Electronically.  
 
Council Member Moore moved to approve the Consent Agenda with a second provided by Council Member Stinson-Wesley. 
All ayes. (Approved 4-0) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Robert Weston Woods, 121 Olive Street, Pineville. Mr. Woods followed up from his comments at the last Town Council 
meeting and shared his concerns about parking on Olive Street. He would like to reduce the parking on the street. He feels 
that our streets weren’t built for the traffic that we have now. 

Les Gladden, Pineville resident. Mr. Gladden expressed his concerns regarding the Highline project. He said that the 
developers have not offered to reduce the number of units. People may be fighting for car spaces. If they can’t park, people 
will quit coming. 

PUBLIC HEARING  

There were no Public Hearings. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 
Middle James Brewery Conditional Site Plan, Travis Morgan. Planning Director, Travis Morgan, noted that this is a 
continuation of the public hearing last month. The property had prior conditional site plan approval from 1998. Due to the 
unique nature of the microbrewery in town, and the site-specific plan, and prior conditional approval with outdoor areas, the 
tents are items that can be considered as consistent with prior adopted plans. There was council discussion of no smoking 
in the tents for safety reasons, and a two-year limit for the vinyl or temporary-type tents. The business owner, Michael.  
 

4

Item 1.



Smoak, spoke briefly and said that they are on board with allowing the tents as shown in the proposal for the 2-year 
allowance and they can go with a more permanent structure after that time, and they are on board with that, as well.  
 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to approve the Site Plan-specific Conditional Plan update, specific to the Middle 
James site, to allow a one-time allowance for outdoor tents for up to two years after the date of this meeting of Council, with 
Council Member Moore providing a second. All ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Budget Amendments, Chris Tucker. Finance Director, Chris Tucker, presented the following Budget Amendments to 
Council for approval: BA 2025-08, which is the last one to close out FY25 with the completion of the fountain project and 
central office project; BA 2026-01, regarding purchase orders outstanding for FY25, and BA 2026-02, for the paving for 
Public Works in the amount of $108,000 from the Powell Bill Reserves.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Samaha moved to approve Budget Amendment 2025-08 as presented with a second made by Council 
Member McDonough. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
Council Member Moore moved to approve Budget Amendment 2026-01 as presented with a second made by Council 
Member Stinson-Wesley. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Samaha moved to approve Budget Amendment 2026-02 as presented with a second made by Council 
Member McDonough. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
 
Approval of Additional Funds for FY 25-26 Paving, Chip Hill.  Finance Director, Chris Tucker, covered this under his 
Budget Amendment 2026-02, which is due to paving bids coming in higher than anticipated for in the budget. The roads in 
this project include Wilson Mill Lane, Green Birch Dr., Carolina Blossom Lane, Virginia Pine Lane, Single Oak Court, Red 
Knoll Lane, and Hidden Rock Road. 
 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to approve the additional funds for the FY25-26 Paving as presented with a second 
made by Council Member Moore. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
 
Process for Appointments for Transit Authority, Ryan Spitzer. Town Manager Spitzer stated that as part of the MOU 
agreement with the County, Town Council needs to set up a process for applicants to apply to be the Pineville 
representative to the Transit Authority. We have one seat open. There are certain perimeters they must meet in order to be 
on the board. One requirement is that they have to live in the jurisdiction of the MTA, not necessarily in Pineville. If Council 
would like the person to be from Pineville, they will have to put that in their stipulations. He suggested that we do formal 
appointments and have Council review the applications, and then proceed with a vote, as we do with our other board 
appointments. Council Member Stinson-Wesley prefers resumes to be attached to the applications and likes the idea of staff 
reviewing the applications and making recommendations first before bringing them to council. Council Member Moore wants 
to be stringent about their backgrounds. 
 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to approve the process for the appointments for the Transit Authority will require a 
resume, as well as the applicant meeting all requirements, with a second made by Council Member Moore. All Ayes. 
(Approved 4-0) 
 
 

Cone Mill PSA Amendment, Ryan Spitzer. Mr. Spitzer reviewed the five changes to the PSA suggested by Council for the 

commercial development phase of the project: Include Century Communities as approved builder (reflected in the 

Development Agreement and Option to Purchase Agreement); Permitting period to coincide with the Brownfields Period 

(reflected in the Third Amendment to the PSA); Remove the requirement for a TIA (the TIA recommended a median on 

Main Street and Council recommended not adding a median); Change the wording in Section 2(d)(i)(B) to The total square 

5

Item 1.



footage of improvements designated as commercial use within the Property at the completion of the Phase I 

improvements and the Phase II Improvements is between 24,000 and 50,000; provided, however, in the event  

 

that the improvements designated as commercial use include less than 24,000 square feet in the aggregate, 

same shall not constitute an Event of Default hereunder, but in such event the Town shall have the option to 

either (A) re-purchase any such undeveloped land in accordance with the Option Agreement, or (B) require 

Developer to convert any such undeveloped land to additional Town Green in accordance with the obligations 

established in this Section 2 (reflected in the Development Agreement).   

In addition, Beachmont R E Holdings would like 72 months after the effective date before the Town can exercise their right 

to repurchase the commercial lots (reflected in Section 2(a) in the Option to Purchase Agreement).  

Council Member McDonough moved to approve the requested amendments as presented with a second made by Mayor 
Pro Tem Samaha. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
 
DRB CIAC Reduction & Fee, Ryan Spitzer. Mr. Spitzer said that in November of 2023, Town Council voted to require all 
developments to pay a certain percentage of the electric infrastructure that would go into any developments. This is based 
on a five-year payback period. DRB is the first development that we would assess this to. The sum is $335,601.91. DRB is 
asking Council to forgive this since it was not part of the development when they first came in and they failed to check on it 
after they first starting building. He added that if Council forgives them without a good reason for doing it, then other 
developments will ask for the same thing and they’ll have a hard time defending that. Council’s consensus was that this is 
their problem.  
 
There was no motion and the request was not passed. 
 
 
Highline Downtown Development, Ryan Spitzer. Mr. Spitzer reported that Mark Miller, with Highline Partners, would like 
Council to consider a vote on two items. A parking backstop that would permit overnight parking for residents of the Heritage 
project at a rate of one space per each space lost in the Shared Parking lot in the event Norfolk Southern terminates the 
lease and requires removal of parking in the right-of-way. Town staff negotiated a four-year agreement with Norfolk 
Southern to allow parking on the right-of-way. Highline is concerned that if the four-year agreement is not renewed, they will 
not be adhering to their parking requirements per the Conditional Site plan. Second, a Parking Buyout of $250,000, paid at 
closing of the construction loan for the project. This buyout would relinquish the owner of Heritage from the annual rent 
payments to Norfolk Southern. The buyout number is based on ten years of rent payments ($25,000 x 10). 
 
Town Council needs to decide if they would allow Highline to park in the town parking lot on College Street if the contract 
with Norfolk Southern is not renewed. Additionally, Town Council needs to decide if an upfront payment would be allowed, or 
if the payments should be annually for the duration of the agreement.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Samaha moved to allow Highline to utilize up to 20 or 21 parking spaces in the Town-owned parking lot on 
College Street, if the contract with Norfolk Southern is not renewed at the conclusion of the four-year agreement, with a 
second made by Council Member Moore. All ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to require payments on a year-to-year basis as presented with a second made by 
Council Member Moore. All Ayes. (Approved 4-0) 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
Town Manager Spitzer reported that Music on Main started last week and will continue to be held on Thursdays. They are 
planning to have yard games this time. We had received comments that we needed some type of activity outside. The 
Pineville 4-Miler is scheduled for Saturday, September 20th. The ribbon cutting for the McCullough Greenway had a good 
turnout last week. Mr. Spitzer expressed his appreciation to Parks and Rec for going into the woods and getting all of the 

6

Item 1.



rocks for that area. Electric is working on the lights and should be finished in time for Fall Fest so people can safely use the 
greenway.  
 
 
Public Works Director, Chip Hill, gave an update on Johnston Road and it is looking like it will be completed on October 15th. 
They are currently working on the curbs and then the sidewalks. Council Member Stinson-Wesley asked if there would be 
police presence available and help across Main Street. Mr. Spitzer replied that they have been discussing this and we will 
have police where they were last year. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council Member Stinson-Wesley made a motion to adjourn followed by a second made by Council Member Moore. All ayes. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Phillips 
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Town Clerk Lisa Snyder 

7

Item 1.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORK SESSION MINUTES 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 

TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

The Town Council of the Town of Pineville, NC, met in a Work Session on Monday, September 22, 2025  
@ 6:00 p.m.  
 
ATTENDANCE: 
                                                                
Mayor: David Phillips 

Mayor Pro Tem: Ed Samaha 

Council Members: Chris McDonough, Danielle Moore, Amelia Stinson-Wesley 

Town Manager: Ryan Spitzer 

Town Clerk: Lisa Snyder 

Planning Director: Travis Morgan 

Town Attorney: Janelle Lyons 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Mayor David Phillips called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

1.12243 Nations Ford Road Outdoor Storage Yard (Travis Morgan). Mr. Morgan stated that Nisbet 

Partners is requesting consideration on a site-specific conditional zoning plan. The proposal is to allow 

for outdoor storage for pipes and associated draining products more than one acre in the G-1 zoning 

district. They propose using an 8’ tall, vinyl chain-link fence with a mesh screen. The items that will be 

stored in the yard will mostly be 5 to 6’ tall with some stacking that will be less than 10’ in height.  Mr. 

Morgan added that we typically prefer storage on the side or rear of the buildings.  

 

Shelton Haile, with Nisbet Partners, spoke and also added that their shrubs meet or exceed the 

requirements of the Town. Council Member Stinson-Wesley does not want it right on the road. Town 

Manager Spitzer said that the required setbacks are 50’. Mr. Morgan added that the property owner is 

responsible for the landscaping.  

 

Mayor Phillips reminded Mr. Haile that if they want this on the next council agenda they will need to 

work with Mr. Morgan on the unresolved issues, which include making sure the buffer requirements are 

505 Main Street  

PO Box 249 

Pineville, NC  28134 

704-889-2291 

 

www.townofpinevillenc.gov 

 

8

Item 1.

http://www.townofpinevillenc.gov/


met, including the 50’ setback from the Nations Ford right-of-way to the proposed fence, blocking the 

storage area as much as possible.  

 

2. Parking (Ryan Spitzer). Town Manager Spitzer revisited the parking concerns of a property owner that 

lives on Olive Street. The property owner is asking council to allow more than the 35% concrete in his 

front yard allowed by our ordinance. Mr. Spitzer added that in the past we have received complaints on 

having too much concrete in the front yards of our residents.  

 

Council concurred that the resident could have a double-car driveway, but he has to stay within the 

calculations allowed in the ordinance.  

 

Town Manager Spitzer discussed the Preston Park speeding concerns and said that LaBella did an 

analysis for speed bumps in this neighborhood.  The cost for each bump is $15,000. The analysis 

recommended ten speed bumps for a total cost of $150,000.  The development would have to pay the 

cost. He asked council if they approve of the locations of the speed bumps, or would they prefer on-

street parking. Police Chief Hudgins was in the audience and stated that he would prefer the speed 

bumps.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Samaha moved to enter Closed Session followed by a second made by Council Member 

Moore. All ayes. 

 

Council Member Moore moved to leave the Closed Session followed by a second made by Council 

Member McDonough. All ayes. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Samaha moved to allow a potential name clearing hearing followed by a second made by 

Council Member Moore. All ayes. 

 

Council Member Stinson-Wesley moved to adjourn the Work Session followed by a second made by 

Mayor Pro Tem Samaha. All ayes. 

 

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:00 pm.  

  
 
 
                                                                                             
___________________________________ 

        David Phillips, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Lisa Snyder, Town Clerk 

9

Item 1.



 

 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-16 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PINEVILLE, NORTH 

CAROLINA DECLARING SURPLUS ITEMS FOR SALE VIA 

ELECTRONIC AUCTION AND/OR DISPOSAL VIA 

DONATION OR RECYCLE  

 
WHEREAS, G.S 160A-265 authorizes the Town Council to dispose of surplus property and G.S.160A-270 (c) 

authorizes the sale of surplus property by means of electronic auction; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Manager, along with Department Heads, have declared surplus and unusable personal property 

as listed in “Exhibit A”;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Town Council hereby authorize the Town Manager 

to dispose of some of the listed items by utilizing the on-line internet auction services of Public Surplus and/or Gov 

Deals and the Town Clerk to dispose of other surplus items via donation or recycling of such items.  The Town Manager 

and Town Clerk shall have the right to add or delete from the properties listed and any items not sold may be disposed 

of by any others means available, including sale at public auction, donation to non-profit organization, or destruction, 

whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of the Town.  

 

Adopted this 14th day of October 2025. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                           _________________________________ 

David Phillips, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:                                                           

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________       

Lisa Snyder, Town Clerk                                        

 

 

 

 

10

Item 3.



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Surplus Property for Auction, Donation, Recycling, Destruction, Sale 

 

Surplus Items  

 

 

                         

 

Dept. Item/Desc/VIN# Make/Model Misc. How 

Disposed 

Eff. Date Miles 

Public 

Works 

Husky 43” toolbox   Online 

Auction 

10/14/25  

Public 

Works 

U S General 5-

drawer tool cart 

  Online 

Auction 

10/14/25  

Public 

Works 

Allied 3-ton rolling 

floor jack 

  Online 

Auction 

10/14/25  

       

       

 

 

 

 

11

Item 3.



 
 

 

FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
October 5 -11, 2025 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Pineville, NC, is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all 

those living in and visiting our state; and 

WHEREAS, roughly three out of five fire deaths happen in homes with either no smoke alarms or 

with no working smoke alarms, and working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires 

almost in half; and 

WHEREAS, smoke alarms sense smoke well before you can, alerting you to danger in the event of 

fire in which you may have as little as 2 minutes to escape safely; and 

 

WHEREAS, Pineville, NC residents should install smoke alarms in every sleeping room, outside 

each separate sleeping area, and on every level of the home; and 

WHEREAS, Pineville, NC residents will make sure their smoke alarms meet the needs of all their 

family members, including those with sensory or physical disabilities; 

and 

WHEREAS, Pineville, NC residents should test smoke alarms at least once a month. 

 

WHEREAS, residents and businesses who have planned and practiced a home or work fire escape 

plan are more prepared and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Pineville's first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of 

home fires and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education; and 

WHEREAS, the 2025 Fire Prevention Week theme, "Charge into Fire Safety’ Lithium-Ion 

Batteries in Your Home" serves to remind us the importance of having working smoke alarms in the 

home. 

THEREFORE I, David Phillips, Mayor of Pineville, NC, do hereby proclaim October 5-11, 2025, as 

Fire Prevention Week, and I urge all the people of the Town of Pineville to make sure their homes have 

working smoke alarms and to support the many public safety activities and efforts of North Carolina's 

fire and emergency services. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Mayor David Philliips 

12

Item 4.



 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION FOR 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 
 

WHEREAS, Millions of Americans face physical and emotional abuse at the hands of 

their significant other each year; and 

 

WHEREAS, Domestic violence defined as abusive behavior in a personal relationship, 

and in a lifetime 1 in 4 women and 1 in 7 men experience severe violence at the hands 

of an intimate partner; and 

 

WHEREAS, These crimes violate an individual’s privacy, dignity, security, and humanity, 

making it all the more important for state, local, and community partners to work to 

eliminate this type of abuse and to provide necessary services, including emergency 

shelter, advocacy education, awareness and resources to ensure that all victims are 

empowered to achieve self-sufficiency; and 

 

WHEREAS, Domestic violence can affect anyone regardless of their age, race, gender, 

or socioeconomic status, leaving an impact on thousands of individuals and families 

across North Carolina over the years; and  

 

WHEREAS, Organizations across North Carolina are working to end domestic violence 

and provide the support survivors need to find their voice, while law enforcement 

remains committed to ensuring justice is served to individuals who harm those who trust 

them; now 

 

THEREFORE, I, David Phillips, Mayor of the Town of Pineville, do hereby proclaim 

October 2025, as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in Pineville, North Carolina. 

 

In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the Town to be 

affixed this _____ day of October in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand Twenty-Five. 

 

 

 

      

 _______________________________________ 

       Mayor David Phillips 
 

13

Item 5.



                     TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

________________________________________________________ 

MEETING DATE: October 10, 2025 

 
Agenda Title/Category: 
 

Budget Amendment 2026-3 / 
Consent Agenda 

Staff Contact/Presenter: 
 

Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
 

Meets Strategic Initiative or 
Approved Plan: 
 

 Yes No If yes, 
list: 

N/A 

  

Background: 
 
 
 
 

The Fire Department applied for and received a FEMA 
grant for SCBA (Self Contained Breathing Apparatus) 
replacements.  
 

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 

A Budget Amendment is needed to receive the grant 
revenue and appropriate towards the equipment 
expenditure. The grant does have a 10% Town match. 

Fiscal impact: 
 
 

Town match of $36,000 to receive $360,000 

Attachments: 
 
 
 
 

BA2026-3 

Recommended Motion to be made 
by Council: 
 
 

Approve as Presented 

 

14

Item 6.



ACCOUNT  TYPE DESCRIPTION
 CURRENT 

BUDGET 

 CHANGE 

(+ / -) 

 AMENDED 

BUDGET 

General Fund

3360.10000.10 Revenue Miscellaneous Grants -                              360,000                 360,000                 

3990.0000.10 Revenue Fund Balance Appropriated 2,573,000             36,000                   2,609,000             

Total Fund Revenues 23,615,000           396,000                 24,011,000           

Expenditure Public Safety 10,902,000           396,000                 11,298,000           

Total Fund Expenditures 23,615,000           396,000                 24,011,000           

Mayor Budget Officer

Town Clerk Finance Director

DESCRIPTION: To receive FEMA SCBA grant and appropriate towards equipment expenditures

FUND / ACCOUNT #

TOWN OF PINEVILLE NC

BUDGET AMENDMENT #2026-3

October 14, 2025

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026

15

Item 6.



                     TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

________________________________________________________ 

MEETING DATE:   10/14/25 

 
Agenda Title/Category: 
 

Consent Agenda 

Staff Contact/Presenter: 
 

Lisa Snyder 

Meets Strategic Initiative or 
Approved Plan: 
 

 Yes No If yes, 
list: 

 

 X 

Background: 
 
 
 
 

The April 28, 2025, Work Session Minutes 
contained a clerical error.  

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 

Under the first agenda item, Parking at 
Highline, the parking spaces should be 
noted 1.65 instead of 1.5. 

Fiscal impact: 
 
 

None 

Attachments: 
 
 
 
 

Updated Minutes with the correct 

number stated. 

Recommended Motion to be made 
by Council: 
 
 

Motion to approve this Consent Agenda 
item. 

 

16

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORK SESSION MINUTES – AMENDED 10/14/25 

MONDAY, APRIL 28, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 

TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Pineville, NC, met in a Work Session on Monday, April 28, 2025 @ 6:00 
p.m.  
 
ATTENDANCE: 
                                                                
Mayor: David Phillips 

Mayor Pro Tem: Ed Samaha 

Council Members: Chris McDonough, Danielle Moore 

Town Manager: Ryan Spitzer 

Town Clerk: Lisa Snyder 

Asst. Manager/Finance Director: Chris Tucker 

Planning Director: Travis Morgan 

Town Attorney: Janelle Lyons 

Absent: Amelia Stinson-Wesley 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Mayor David Phillips called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

Parking at Highline (Mark Miller, Owner/Developer of Highline). Mr. Miller provided an update on the downtown 

parking for this development. He indicated that they are past halfway through the construction drawings and 

shared the updated site plan with Council.  As it relates to parking, he wanted to be clear, the zoning documents 

mandate that Buildings 2 and 3, that are north of College, the developer noted an area that will be conveyed to 

Highline by the Town, and it is slightly less than what was originally anticipated. The zoning documents state that if 

the town is conveying less than what was conceptually agreed upon, this is what the developer must do. The goal 

is 2 parking spaces per unit. If we get less, the developer must provide as many spaces as possible but no less than 

1.65 spaces per unit.  They are at 1.65 spaces per unit plus one. This does not include the 23 on-street spaces that 

are on the north side of College Street. There’s an additional 3 spaces on the south side of College Street. It does 

not include the 10 spaces on the west side of Church Street that are adjacent to Building 1. This comes to 36 

additional on-street spaces, in addition to the ratio he provided. It does include the 98 spaces that they have to 

meet. 

 

Mr. Spitzer asked Council if they are ok with 1.65 spaces instead of the 2 parking spaces they asked for. Mr. Miller 

added that he understands that parking is a priority. Mr. Miller added that they have to sign a lease with Norfolk 

Southern for the parking by the right-of-way. This is not a problem, but he feels that since the right-of-way is on 

the property of the Town and he thinks it’s best if the Town signs the lease with Norfolk Southern and Highline has 

505 Main Street  

PO Box 249 

Pineville, NC  28134 

704-889-2291 

 

www.townofpinevillenc.gov 

 

17

Item 7.

http://www.townofpinevillenc.gov/


agreed to pay any rents for the lease. There won’t be any cost to the Town. All council members agreed on 1.65 

plus one parking spaces. 

 

Text Amendment Request for indoor sports center (Travis Morgan). Mr. Morgan reviewed the continuation of a 

proposed text amendment to be added as a permitted use by right in the General Industrial area. He advised that 

a new parking count has been added. He shared the proposed layout and added that he has not received any 

comments from the adjacent property owners. All council members were good with this update.  

 

Acceptance of Huntley Glen (Travis Morgan). Mr. Morgan advised that Council approval is needed to formally 

accept the planned public streets in Huntley Glen. Denise Nichols, on behalf of True Homes, requests the Town to 

accept the public roads as shown on the final plat maps. This acceptance would add 7 roads into the Town road 

network and would total 7,464 linear feet of roadway.  The road guarantee bonds totaling $1,838,000 would also 

be released.  There is currently a disagreement over the maintenance bond requirement and the County has 

placed this under legal review, particularly due to storm water management facilities.  Mr. Morgan recommends 

completion of the landscape installation and resolution of the bond requirements and that bonds be released 

prior to scheduling a public hearing date.  Council wants to wait to hear from the county.  

 

Solicitation presentation (Janelle Lyons). Attorney Lyons advised that she received a letter from Moxie Pest 

Control’s attorneys challenging our solicitation ordinance. He is threatening that if council does not repeal the 

ordinance, or at least make changes that are more narrow, he will file a lawsuit for a court to determine 

constitutionality of our no solicitation ordinance. He feels we are making content-based decisions, meaning that 

we allow nonprofits to go door-to-door, but we don’t allow commercial businesses. He feels this is keeping him 

from telling people about the services he provides. Attorney Lyons shared some options to consider to address 

this, including changing the hours of solicitation, creating a no-knock list, etc.) There was a general discussion and 

noted that most people do not want solicitation at their residences.  Mr. Spitzer suggested banning all solicitations 

at this time.  He also added that we can have a public hearing to receive comments and public input.  

 

Voluntary Agricultural District (Ryan Spitzer).  Mr. Spitzer said that the County approached the each of the towns 

and the city, wanting them to agree to a voluntary agricultural district. What this would do is give property owners 

that own over an acre and have a farming-related business, a tax break with the county taxes, for as long as they 

perform farm-related duties. The person would first have to apply to be eligible by the county.  No revenue would 

be taken from the town. These do not have to be in an agricultural district. There will be a county board that will 

review these applications. Council will vote on the MOU at the next council meeting in May. 

 

Finance Report (Chris Tucker). Mr. Tucker shared the Third Quarter Finance Report and presented no concerns. 

This is informational only. He added that revenues are exceeding the expenditures.  He does not have any 

concerns for the fourth quarter.  

 

Manager’s Recommended Budget (Ryan Spitzer). Mr. Spitzer began the presentation by reviewing Council’s 

priorities: support of downtown businesses, transit accessibility, work with State and Federal legislatures, College 

Street and Cone Mill developments, traffic, competitive salaries, Public Safety staffing, and Downtown investment. 

The manager’s budgetary goals include: Advance Compensation Study done in FY25, Public Safety, follow the 

financial model, offer a high level of service and amenities, and staffing. 

 

Mr. Spitzer outlines Pressures, which include: Fire Department debt, meals and sales tax will be flat (this is a big 

part of our revenue that we won’t see growth in), competitive salaries in the market, health insurance (up 22% 

this year as we’ve seen more claims this year and the workforce is getting older), Expenditure mix, Electric fund, 

and the PCS fund. He continued reviewing the General Fund Overview. This year it’s a $23,125,000 budget, which 

is a 14.6% increase from last year).  Debt service has increased by 85% due to the purchase of the new Fire 

Department.  This means that it’s a $0.030 tax rate.  This increase will go toward the Fire Department. Fees will 18

Item 7.



remain the same. The Town will continue to pay for all trash service (this equals about $800,000). COLA will be 

3.5% and merit will be an average of 2.5%.  Public Safety will add a co-responder and the Fire Department will 

have added personnel.  This year they will give our Communications Specialist $25,000 for marketing. 

Sponsorships should remain the same.  

 

General Fund Operations were reviewed and include PD staffing (restructuring), the addition of a Co-Responder 

for the PD, Asset Forfeiture in the amount of $450,000, Fire Department staffing (2 positions will allow for 4 

people on each apparatus), Salaries (COLA), Non-profit contributions will remain the same, and dedicated 

allotment to marketing and downtown. 

 

General Fund Capital was reviewed and includes the Fire Department building debt, an ADA playground, vehicles 

for the Police Department and Public Works, paving on Cone, Eden, Marine, etc., paving lower lots at Lake Park, 

the concession stand roof, mobility (sidewalks), and a message board to be shared between the PD and Tourism 

and Culture). Other funds reviewed were the Electric Fund, Electric Fund Capital, and PCS.  

 

Mr. Spitzer provided a Recap and announced that there will be a $0.015 tax rate increase (30 cents).  This increase 

will go toward the Fire Department debt payment, two Fire Department employees, Command structure, Co-

Responder, and a restructuring of the PD staff from 46 to 41.  There is $1.4 million in Capital.  The salary study 

includes a 3% COLA and a 2.5% merit.  An Electric rate increase will cover wholesale increases and approval for 

debt for the substation. There are no changes from FY25 for PCS. 

 

The next steps are to post the recommended budget for 10 days prior to the public hearing; schedule the public 

hearing in May with a final vote in June. 

 

Council Member Moore moved to adjourn the Work Session followed by a second made by Mayor Pro Tem 

Samaha. All ayes. 

 

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:15 pm.  

 

 

 

                                                                                               
______________________________________ 

        David Phillips, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Lisa Snyder, Town Clerk 

 

19

Item 7.



                     TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

________________________________________________________ 

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2025  

 
Agenda - Title/Category: 
 

Delivery #4, Substation Foundation 
and Below Grade Construction 

Staff Contact/Presenter: 
 

Kevin Josupait 

Meets Strategic Initiative or 
Approved Plan: 
 

 Yes No If yes, 
list: 

Reliability 
  X  

Background: 
 
 
 
 

This work will install the foundations, 
ground grid and all the below grade 
construction for the New Substation 
Project, Delivery #4.   

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 

Formal bids were solicited for this 
work and staff received 4 bids. The 
most responsive, responsible bidder 
was Hux Contracting at $517,851.00  

Fiscal impact: 
 
 

$517,851.00 

Attachments: 
 
 
 
 

Bid Tabulation, Recommendation 

Letter, Hux Contracting Contract 

Recommended Motion to be made 
by Council: 
 
 

Award contract to Hux Contracting in 
the amount of $517,851.00 

 

20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



SOUTHEASTERN CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
600 MINUET LANE

CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA 28217
LICENSE NO. F-0181

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
FOR THE

FOUNDATION AND BELOW GRADE CONSTRUCTION OF
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

TOWN OF PINEVILLE
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Contract No. 24-40-BG

24

Item 8.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Request for Proposals
2. Contractor’s Proposal
3. Agreement for Construction Services
4. Indemnity Provisions
5. Exhibit 1
6. Certificate of Insurance (To be inserted by successful bidder)
7. Bid Bond
8. Payment Bond
9. Performance Bond
10. Exhibit A - Scope of Services:  Site Work
11. Exhibit B - Construction Specifications:  Site Work
12. Appendix A - Geotechnical Report

25

Item 8.



TOWN OF PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION 

BELOW GRADE CONSTRUCTION 

WHEREAS, The Town of Pineville, North Carolina, Owner, wishes to contract with an
independent contractor for the furnishing of all materials, equipment, labor and supervision
necessary to provide the services outlined in Exhibits A and B which are attached hereto and
made a part hereof for site construction for substation located on property owned by the Town of
Pineville at 12499 Nations Ford Road, in Mecklenburg County, and 

WHEREAS, The Town seeks a contractor whose staff is experienced and well qualified to
provide the work required in this RFP in a professional, timely manner, and

WHEREAS, The Town requires the contractor to provide the aforesaid services pursuant to the
terms and conditions contained herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, The Town of Pineville is soliciting proposals from qualified contractors
to provide the equipment and to perform the work as described herein.  Sealed proposals will be
received on or before 2:00 PM, EST, Thursday, October 2, 2025, in the Conference room in
Pineville Town Hall, located at 505 Main Street, Pineville, North Carolina 28134, at which time
and place the proposals will be publicly opened and read.

Access to electronic proposal documents can be obtained from Town’s consultant, Southeastern
Consulting Engineers, Inc., by phone at 704-523-6045 or via email to lisa@scepower.com.

Proposals and all supporting documents required to be attached thereto must be submitted in a
sealed envelope within the time allowed and addressed to Ms. Tammy Vachon, Pineville Town
Hall, 505 Main Street, Pineville, North Carolina 28134.  The name and address of the Bidder,
and the date and hour of the receipt of bids must appear on the outside of the envelope in which
the proposal is submitted.  Proposals shall also be marked “Sealed Bid for Delivery No. 4
Substation Below Grade Construction”.  Bidders will be required to comply with all applicable
statutes, regulations, licensing requirements, and those requirements as provided in the Contract
Documents.

BID BOND

Each proposal must be accompanied by a cash deposit or certified check on a bank that is a
member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, payable to the order of the Owner, or a
Bidder’s Bond on the form attached hereto, in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the
maximum amount of the Contractor’s bid.  If a proposal is not accepted or if a proposal or any
part thereof is accepted and a Contract is executed, the check or Bidder’s Bond will be returned

(a) 1

26

Item 8.



in each instance within a period of thirty (30) days to the Bidder furnishing same; except that
each Bidder agrees, provided its proposal is one of the three low proposals, that, by filing its
proposal together with such cash, check or Bidder’s Bond in consideration of the Owner’s
receiving and considering such proposal, said proposal shall be firm and binding upon each such
Bidder and such cash, check or Bidder’s Bond shall be held by the Owner for a period not
exceeding sixty (60) days from the date of the receipt of the proposals.

AGREEMENT

The successful Bidder will be required to enter into an Agreement with the Owner on the terms
and on the Form of Contract which is included in the Contract Documents.  The Form of
Contract is not to be completed prior to the submittal of proposals, and is attached to provide
information to Bidder(s) as to its contents and Bid requirements prior to preparation of Bid.  Only
the successful Bidder(s) will be required to execute the Form of Contract within ten (10) days
after the date of acceptance by the Owner.  

The contractor shall include in its proposal the following promises and mutual covenants to be
included in a resulting Agreement from the Town’s acceptance of the contractor’s proposal.

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

The successful Bidder will be required to furnish Performance and Payment Bonds on the forms
attached hereto, in a penal sum not less than the contract price and with sureties satisfactory to
the Town’s Attorney.

TERM:

The Town hereby contracts with Contractor to provide the above referenced services as specified
herein for a period beginning on the date stated in the Notice to Proceed and ending on
satisfactory completion of the designated work.

The Town reserves the right to amend, modify or revise the scope of work as required by funding
available and/or work requirements at time of project.  The Town will be the sole judge as to
what changes may be required.

NOTICE TO PROCEED

A Notice to Proceed letter will be issued after the Contractor has executed an Agreement with the
Town and has provided his Performance Bond and his Insurance Certificate(s) or Endorsements.

The Contractor shall not deliver any equipment to the work site or commence work until he has
received a written Notice to Proceed.  Work will commence immediately after issuance of the
Notice to Proceed.

(a) 2

27

Item 8.



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Contractor shall provide the services in accordance with the scope of service contained herein in
the attached Exhibits A and B.  Such services hereinafter shall be referred to as the Work Site
Services.

Unless otherwise specified herein, the Contractor will furnish all materials, transport, equipment,
labor and supervision, to complete the Work.  All work shall be performed in a professional,
timely manner.  Contractor is not to proceed without coordinating the Work with the Electric
System Manager or their authorized representative.

CONTRACTOR’S WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

Contractor must represent that its staff is knowledgeable and experienced about such services and
must warrant that it will use its best efforts to provide above-described services in a professional,
timely manner and in accordance with the applicable specifications set forth herein, or if none,
with the standards either by law or regulations, or industry practice.  Contractor shall provide
evidence of its knowledge and experience by attaching a list of its most recent five (5) projects
where it performed similar services with a general description of the services provided.

The Contractor shall further warrant and represent the following:

That it has become fully acquainted with the conditions, facts and circumstances relating to
providing the services required under the Agreement.  The failure or omission of Contractor to
acquaint itself with existing conditions, facts and circumstances shall in no way relieve it of any
obligation with respect to the Agreement.  Contractor may make an appointment to visit the work
site by contacting the Town’s Engineer, Telephone (704) 523-6045.

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT TERMS

Contractor shall be compensated upon completion of all services contained herein based on the
proposal attached hereto and made a part hereof .  Contractor shall submit an itemized invoice to
the Town’s Engineer.  Said invoice will be paid within 30 days by the Town unless any items
thereon are questioned, in which event payment will be withheld pending verification of the
amount claimed, validity of the claim and verification that work performed meets Owner’s
requirements.  Contractor shall provide complete cooperation during any such investigation.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall, at all times during the term of the Agreement, carry insurance as required in
Exhibit 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference.  The Town shall not issue a
Notice to Proceed until Contractor has submitted acceptable certificate(s) or endorsement(s), and
which reflect that the required coverages are in place and that all premiums have been paid. 
Refusal or failure to submit such certificate(s) or endorsement(s) shall constitute grounds for the

(a) 3

28

Item 8.



Town to revoke the contract and award the contract to another contractor.  The Town may
contact the Contractor’s insurer’s or insurers’ agent(s) directly at any time regarding Contractor’s
coverage’s, coverage amounts, or other such relevant and reasonable issues related to this
Agreement.

Contractor must advise the Town’s Purchasing Agent, in writing, of any changes or cancellations
to insurance coverage within five (5) days of any such change.

PERMITS AND LICENSE

The Contractor shall, without additional expense to the Town of Pineville, be responsible for
obtaining any necessary licenses and permits required by the State, county, or the Town of
Pineville. 

INDEMNIFICATION

Except for expenses or liabilities arising from the negligence of the Town, the Contractor shall
expressly agree to indemnify and hold the Town harmless against any and all expenses and
liabilities arising out of the performance of default of this Contract as follows:

The Contractor expressly agrees to the extent that there is a causal relationship between its
negligent, reckless or intentionally wrongful action or inaction, or the negligent, reckless or
intentionally wrongful action or inaction of any of its employees or any person, firm, or
corporation directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor, and any damage, liability, injury,
loss or expense (whether in connection with bodily injury or death or property damage or loss)
that is suffered by the Town and its employees or by any member of the public, to indemnify and
save the Town and its employees harmless against any and all liabilities, penalties, demands,
claims, lawsuits, losses, damages, costs, and expenses arising out of the performance or default
of this Contract.  Such costs are to include defense, settlement and reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred by the Town and its employees.  This promise to indemnify shall include bodily injuries
or death occurring to Contractor’s employees and any person directly or indirectly employed by
Contractor (including without limitation any employee of any subcontractor), the Town’s
employees, the employees of any other independent contractors, or occurring to any member of
the public.  When the Town submits notice, Contractor shall promptly defend any
aforementioned action.  This obligation shall survive the suspension or termination of this
Agreement.  The limits of insurance coverage required herein shall not serve to limit this
indemnity obligation.  The recovery of costs and fees shall extend to those incurred in the
enforcement of this indemnity.

PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY, PERSONS AND PUBLIC

It is specifically understood and agreed that during the progress of the Work under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall take the strongest precautions against the possibility of fire on 

(a) 4

29

Item 8.



the work site and maintain adequate protection of the Work, adjacent property, structures and
public, and shall be responsible for any damage or injury due to its act or neglect.

The Contractor shall be responsible at all times for the safety of the general public and for the
protection of persons who may enter within the limits of his work and shall comply with all the
laws of the State of North Carolina and the United States with all valid rules and regulations now
in force or hereafter adopted pursuant thereto.  For the purpose of this Section, “limits of his
work” shall mean the area undergoing Work, and the area being used for the delivery of materials
and transportation of workers.  All areas closed for work shall be protected by effective
barricades on which shall be placed acceptable warning and detour signs.  The Contractor shall
bear the entire expense and responsibility and shall not be reimbursed directly or separately by
the Town for providing and maintaining all necessary or required barricades, warning lights,
danger signals, signs or other precautions for the protection of the work and safety of the public.

INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

All work (which term includes, but is not restricted to materials, workmanship) shall be subject
to inspection and test by the Electric System Manager or their authorized representative at all
reasonable times and places prior to acceptance.  Any such inspection is for the sole benefit of
the Town and shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility of providing quality control
measures to assure that the work strictly complies with the contract requirements.

ASSIGNMENT

Contractor shall neither have the right to assign this Agreement nor to allow any individual to
undertake any of the duties provided herein without the written permission of the Town’s
Purchasing Agent or their approved representative.

SUSPENSION FOR NONCOMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

The Electric System Manager or their authorized representative may order suspension of the
Work in whole or in part for such time as he/she deems necessary because of the failure of the
Contractor to comply with any of the requirements of the Agreement.

When the Electric System Manager or their authorized representative orders any suspension of
the Work under this Article, Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation, costs or
damages resulting from such suspension.

The rights and remedies of the Town provided here are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or under the Agreement.

(a) 5

30

Item 8.



NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Contractor shall not discriminate against any individuals based upon age, sex, race,
disability, or religion and shall abide by the requirements contained in Federal Executive Order
Number 11246, as amended, including specifically the provisions of the equal opportunity
clause.

NON-WAIVER

Any waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not constitute waiver of any
subsequent default, nor shall it operate to require either party to waive, or entitle either party to a
waiver of, any subsequent default hereunder.

TYPE OF WORK SUPERVISION

The Contractor shall provide on-site supervision to assure competent performance of the work
during all scheduled work hours.  Also the Contractor or authorized agent will make sufficient
routine inspections to ensure that the work is performed as required by the Contract.

STORAGE STAGING AREAS

If the project site is not sufficient, the Contractor is responsible for selecting an appropriate site
as a staging area for storage of materials and equipment during work schedule.  This site will
become the responsibility of the Contractor and Contractor shall provide documentation that he
will be financially responsible for this site.

The Contractor will restore the area to the Owner’s satisfaction once the work is complete.

CONTRACTOR LICENSING

Consideration will be given only to bids of the Contractors licensed under the North Carolina
"Act to Regulate the Practice of General Contracting."  Contractors and subcontractors, in order
to perform public work in the state of North Carolina, are required to hold State of North
Carolina Contractor's licenses of the class required to perform the specified work.  Contractor's
license number shall be inserted in the appropriate place on the Proposal form, before Proposal
will be considered.  Evidence of subcontractor's compliance with the above shall be submitted to
the Engineer before starting subcontract work on public work contracts.

OWNER EVALUATION RIGHTS

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to accept any bid which appears to be
in the best interest of the Owner.

(a) 6

31

Item 8.



The Owner reserves the right to waive minor deviations in any Proposal.  Any such deviations so
waived must be corrected on the Proposal in which they occur prior to the execution of any
Contract which may be awarded thereon.

TAXES

Each Bidder shall include and shall be deemed to have included, in the price quoted in the
Contractor's Proposal for each Bid Item, the amounts which it is estimated will be payable by the
successful Bidder, or by the Owner on account of taxes imposed by any taxing authority upon the
sale, purchase or use of materials, supplies or equipment incorporated in the Project as part of
such Bid Item.  All taxes of the foregoing descriptions shall be payable by the Bidder which shall
be awarded the Contract for the construction of the Project.

ROAD CLOSURES

Traffic control, signage and barricades for road and lane closures and work inside the road rights-
of-way shall be in accordance with applicable encroachment permits and the Federal Highway
Administration’s (FHWA), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with the above provisions in a reasonable manner,
in the opinion of the Engineer, shall be sufficient cause for the Engineer to order a temporary
shut-down of the work until the provisions have been met.

(a) 7

32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



Section 2.  The Contract effected by acceptance of this proposal shall consist of the Request for
Proposals, the Contractor’s Proposal, the Scope of Work Site Services, the Construction
Agreement, Performance and Payment Bonds, Construction Specifications, Construction
Drawings, and Plans, all of which are incorporated herein.

Section 3.  The Bidder has made a careful examination of the site of the Project to be
constructed, and the Plans, Specifications, Construction Drawings, Description of Assembly
Units and forms of the Construction Agreement and has become informed as to the location and
nature of the proposed construction, the transportation facilities, the kind and character of soil
and terrain to be encountered and the kind of facilities required before and during the
construction of the Project, and has become acquainted with the labor conditions which would
affect work on the proposed construction.

Section 4.  The Bidder agrees to make changes in construction previously installed as required by
the Owner and approved in writing by Owner prior to performing change for prices arrived at on
the following basis:

  The cost of labor shall be the reasonable cost thereof but in no event shall it exceed twice
the cost of the labor for the units previously installed as quoted in the Proposal; Provided,
however, that no payment shall be made to the Bidder for materials or labor involved in
correcting mistakes or omissions on the part of the Bidder which result in construction not in
accordance with the Plans and Specifications.

Section 5.  The Bidder agrees that when it is necessary to construct units not shown in the
Proposal but required by Owner and approved in writing prior to performing change, he will
construct such units for a price arrived at on the following basis:

  The Cost of materials shall be determined by the invoices.

  The Cost of labor shall be determined by calculating the ratio of the total labor costs to
the total material costs for the same type of units in the section of the Proposal involved, then
multiplying the cost of materials for the unit in question by this ratio.

Section 6.  This Proposal is made pursuant to the provisions of the Request for Proposals
attached hereto and the Bidder agrees to the terms and conditions thereof.

Section 7.  The Bidder warrants that this proposal is made in good faith and without collusion or
connection with any other person or persons bidding for the same work.

Section 8.  The Bidder agrees that in the event this Proposal is accepted he will execute a
Contract and provide Performance and Payment Bond in the form on file with the Owner.

Section 9.  The Bidder agrees to commence construction after the Engineer has given the
undersigned written notice to commence construction, and further agrees to prosecute diligently

(b) 3

35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



EXTERNAL CONTRACT ADDENDUM

1. Applicable Laws and Courts. This contract shall be governed in all respects by the

laws of the State of North Carolina.  All matters, whether sounding in contract or tort

relating to the validity, construction, interpretation, and enforcement of the Contract,

shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of North Carolina and venue

shall be proper only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Mecklenburg County,

North Carolina.  The Contractor represents and warrants that it shall comply with all

applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and orders, including, not limited

to, licensure requirements. 

2. Anti-Discrimination and Equal Employment. During the performance of the

Contract, Contractor shall comply with all federal and state requirements concerning

fair and equal employment and shall not discriminate against or deny the Contract’s

benefits to any person on the basis of race, religion, color, creed, national origin, age,

sex (including sexual orientation, gender identity, and pregnancy), disability or

handicapping condition, or genetic information. 

3. Verification of Work Authorization.  Contractor shall comply with, and require all

contractors and subcontractors to comply with, the requirements of Article 2 of

Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes, “Verification of Work

Authorization,” sometimes known as E-verify, for all contractors and subcontractors.

4. Iran Divestment List.  With the execution hereof, Contractor, certifies that they are 

not on the Iran Final Divestment List created by the N.C. State Treasurer pursuant to

N.C.G.S. § 147-86.58, and will not contract with anyone on such List in performance

of the work hereunder.

5. Availability of Funds. Any and all payments to the Contractor are dependent upon 

and subject to the availability of funds to the Town for the purpose set forth in this

agreement.

6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is found to be invalid or unlawful, then

remainder of this Contract shall not be affected thereby, and each remaining provision

shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

7. Companies that Boycott Israel. With the execution hereof, Contractor, certifies that 

they are not on the Companies that Boycott Israel List created by the N.C. State

Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 147-86.80, and will not contract with anyone on such

List in performance of the work hereunder.

8. Governmental Immunity. Nothing contained in this Contract shall constitute a 

waiver of the Town’s governmental immunity or of any limitation on liability or

damages created by law.

9. Priority of Terms. The terms of this addendum shall supersede and take priority over 

any conflicting terms in the contract documents. 

39

Item 8.



EXHIBIT 1

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall not commence work until he has obtained all insurance required, and such
insurance has been approved by the Town, nor shall the Contractor allow any subcontractor to
commence work on his subcontract until all similar insurance required of the subcontractor has
been obtained.  The Contractor shall provide Certificate of Insurance as indicated, and with
minimum limits as indicated below.

a. The Contractor shall provide and maintain or insure during the life of the contract
Workmen’s Compensation Insurance for all employees employed at the site of the
project under his contract or subcontracts in an amount meeting the statutory
requirements of the State of North Carolina.

b. The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of the contract Automobile
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability covering all owned, non-owned and
hired automobiles for limits of not less than $1,000,000 bodily injury each person, each
accident and $1,000,000 property damage, or $1,000,000 combined single limit-Bodily
injury and property damage combined.

c. The Contractor shall provide and maintain during the life of the contract Comprehensive
General Liability.  Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability shall protect the
contractor and any subcontractor performing work under this contract from claims of
bodily injury or property damage which arise from operations of this contract whether
such operations are performed by the contractor, any subcontractor or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either.  The amounts of such insurance shall not be less than
$1,000,000 bodily injury each occurrence/aggregate and $1,000,000 property damage
each occurrence/aggregate or $1,000,000 bodily injury and property damage combined
single limits each occurrence/aggregate.  This insurance shall include coverage for
products/completed operations, personal injury liability and contractual liability assumed
under the indemnity provision of this contract and broad form property damage,
explosion, collapse and underground utility damage (XC&U); stating if policy is written
on a claims made or occurrence basis.

d. The Contractor shall furnish such additional insurance as may be required by statutory
requirements of the State of North Carolina.

e. Each Certificate of Insurance shall bear the provision that the policy cannot be canceled,
reduced in the amount of coverage or coverage eliminated in less than thirty (30) days
after mailing written notice to the insured and the Town of such alteration or cancellation,
sent by registered mail.

Page 1 of  2

40

Item 8.



f. The Contractor shall furnish the Town with satisfactory proof of coverage of the
insurance required before written approval is granted by the Town.

g. Additional Insured shall be listed as the Town of Pineville, North Carolina and
ElectriCities of North Carolina.  Do not list an individual’s name in that portion of the
certificate.  An original copy of the additional insured Endorsement must be
included with the Certificate of Insurance.

Page 2 of  2

41

Item 8.



Page 1 of 9  

CONTRACT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

 
This Contract for Goods and Services ("Contract") is made and entered into __________ of ________________  , 2025 

between The Town of Pineville, North Carolina, with a mailing address of P.O. Box 249, Pineville, NC 28134 

("Town") and _________________________________________________________ ("Contractor"). For and in consideration of the 

mutual promises set forth in this Contract, the parties do mutually agree as follows: 

 
1.   Obligations of Contractor. The Contractor agrees to provide the services, goods, materials, equipment, and/or 

software (the "Services" and/or "Goods," as appropriate) to fully, timely and properly complete Electric Substation 

Sitework Construction as more particularly described in the Scope of Work document attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference as Exhibits A and B. 

 
 

The term of this Contract shall be 120 days after Notice to Proceed. 

 
This Contract does not grant the Contractor the right or the exclusive right to provide specified Services and/or 

Goods to TOWN. Similar Services and/or Goods may be obtained from sources other than the Contractor (or not 

at all) at the discretion of TOWN. 

 
The Contractor shall begin work immediately upon issuance of a written notice to proceed. The Contractor agrees 

to perform the Services and supply the Goods or in a timely, complete, and professional manner and in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of this Contract. Furthermore, the Contractor represents and warrants that (i) it is 

duly qualified and, if required by law, licensed to provide the Services and/or Goods; (ii) it will provide the Services 

and/or Goods in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by contractors providing  

s im i l a r  Services and/or Goods under similar conditions; (iii) it possesses sufficient experience, personnel, and 

resources to provide the Services and/or Goods; (iv) it shall provide the Services and/or Goods in compliance with 

applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, orders, rules and regulations; and (v) its reports, if any, shall be 

complete, accurate, and unambiguous. 

 
2. Obligations of TOWN. TOWN hereby agrees to pay to the Contractor for the faithful performance of this Contract, 

and the Contractor  hereby agrees to provide all of the Services and/or  Goods, for the sum not to exceed 

$___________  ("Contract Price") subject to adjustments as provided for in the Contract Documents: 

 
3. Project Coordinator. Tammy Vachon is designated as the Project Coordinator for TOWN. The Project Coordinator 

shall be TOWN' representative in connection with the Contractor's performance under this Contract. TOWN has 

complete discretion in replacing the Project Coordinator with another person of its choosing. 

 
4. Contractor Supervisor. __________________________ is designated as the Contractor Supervisor for the 

Contractor. The Contractor Supervisor is fully authorized to act on behalf of the Contractor in connection with this 

Contract. 

 
5. Terms  and  Methods of Payment.  TOWN will make payment after invoices are approved on a net 30-day  basis. 

TOWN will not pay for services or materials in advance without the prior approval of the Finance Officer.  Contractor 

to submit invoices on the following schedule: End of Month. 

 
6. Standard Terms and Conditions: Contractor agrees to the Standard Terms and Conditions set forth as Attachment 

A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7. Counterpart Execution. This Contract may be executed and recorded in two or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

42

Item 8.



Page 2 of 9  

 

Each party shall be entitled to rely upon executed copies of this Contract transmitted by facsimile or electronic 

"PDF" to the same and full extent as the originals. 

 
 

 
[THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLVJ 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE} 

43

Item 8.



Page 3 of 9  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TOWN and the Service Provider have executed this Contract on the day and year first written 

above. 

 
 

 

Service Provider Name 

 

 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative Date 

 

 
 

Service Provider's Federal Identification # 

[if Contract is with Organization or Social Security Number if individual] 
 
 
 
 

Town of Pineville 
 

________________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Representative           Date 

 
 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 

Control Act. 

 

 

 

________________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Finance Officer           Date 

44

Item 8.



Page 4 of 9  

Attachment A 

 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

 
I. Standard Terms and Conditions for All Contracts 

 
1. Acceptance. Contractor's execution of this Contract and/or acknowledgment of the terms of any applicable 

purchase order ("Purchase Order"), without timely express written objection, or Contractor's shipment or 

performance of any part of a Purchase Order, constitutes an agreement to (i) all terms and conditions set forth 

or referenced herein and on the face of a Purchase Order, (ii) on any attachments hereto, (iii) any applicable 

solicitation documentation related to hereto (including without limitation  any request for proposals or 

invitation for bids or Contractor's response thereto), and (iv) any other terms and conditions of a written 

agreement signed by Contractor and TOWN that deals with the same subject matter (collectively, the "Contract 

Documents"). The terms and provisions set forth in the Contract Documents shall constitute the entire 

agreement between Contractor and TOWN with respect to the purchase by TOWN of the Services and/or 

Goods (the "Goods" and/or "Services," as appropriate) provided or work performed as described in the 

Contract Documents. The agreements set forth in the Contract Documents are sometimes referred to herein 

as the "Contract." In the event of any conflict between any terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, 

the terms and conditions most favorable to TOWN shall control. A Purchase Order constitutes an offer by 

TOWN and expressly limits acceptance to the terms and conditions stated therein. No additional or 

supplemental provision or provisions in variance herewith that may appear in Contractor's quotation, 

acknowledgment, invoice, or in any other communication from Contractor to TOWN shall be deemed accepted 

by or binding on TOWN. TOWN hereby expressly rejects all such provisions which supplement, modify or 

otherwise vary from the terms of the Contract Documents, and such provisions are superseded by the terms 

and conditions stated in the Contract Documents, unless and until TOWN' authorized representatives expressly 

assent, in writing, to such provisions. Stenographic and clerical errors and omissions by TOWN are subject to 

correction. 

2. Quantities. Shipments must equal exact amounts ordered unless otherwise agreed in writing by TOWN. The 

award of a term contract neither implies nor guarantees any minimum or maximum purchases. 

3. Prices. If Contractor's price or the regular market price of any of the Goods covered hereunder is lower than 

the price stated in the Contract Documents on the date of shipment of such Goods, Contractor agrees to give 

TOWN the benefit of such lower price on any such Goods. In no event shall Contractor's price be higher than 

the price last quoted or last charged to TOWN unless otherwise agreed in writing. No charges for 

transportation, boxing, crating, etc. are allowable unless such charges are included in the Contract Documents. 

4. Invoices. It is understood and agreed that orders will be shipped at the established Contract prices in effect on 

dates orders are placed. Invoicing at variance with this provision may subject the Contract to cancellation. 

Applicable North Carolina sales tax shall be invoiced as a separate item. Invoices shall be sent to TOWN' 

accounts payable department with a copy to TOWN Project Coordinator. 

5. Freight on Board. All shipments of Goods are FOB destination unless otherwise stated in the Contract 

Documents. 

6. Taxes. Taxes are included in the Contract Price. Applicable taxes shall be invoiced as a separate item for 

TOWN' records. 

7. Payment Terms. Payment terms are Net 30 days after receipt of correct invoice or acceptance of Goods, 

whichever is later. 

8. Condition and Packaging. Unless otherwise provided by special terms and conditions or specifications, it is 

understood and agreed that any item offered or shipped has not been sold or used for any purpose and shall 

be in first class condition. All containers/packaging shall be suitable for handling, storage or shipment. 

9. Delays in Shipment. Time and date of delivery are of the essence, except when delay is due to causes beyond 

Contractor's reasonable control and without Contractor's fault or negligence. 

10. Risk of Loss. Contractor shall have the risk of loss of and damage to the Goods subject to the Contract 

Documents until such Goods are delivered to the destination and accepted by TOWN or its nominee. 

45

Item 8.



Page 5 of 9  

11. Rejection. All Goods shall be received subject to TOWN' inspection. Goods that are defective in workmanship  

or material or otherwise not in conformity with the requirements of the Contract Documents may be rejected 

and returned at Contractor's expense or may be accepted at a reduced price. TOWN may require Contractor 

to promptly replace or correct any rejected Goods Services and, if Contractor fails to do so, TOWN may contract 

with a third party to replace such Goods Services and charge Contractor the additional cost. 

12. Warranties. Contractor warrants that all Goods delivered hereunder will be free from defects in materials and 

workmanship and will conform strictly to the specifications, drawings, or samples specified or furnished. This 

warranty shall survive any inspection, delivery, acceptance or payment by TOWN of the Goods and shall run to 

TOWN and any user of the Goods. This express warranty is in addition to Contractor's implied warranties of 

merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose which shall not be disclaimed. In addition to any other 

rights available at law or equity, TOWN shall be entitled to all rights and remedies provided by the Uniform 

Commercial Code, Chapter 25 of the North Carolina General Statutes, for breach of express warranties and 

implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, including but not limited to 

consequential and incidental damages. 

13. Compliance with All Laws. Contractor warrants that all performance hereunder shall be in accordance 

with all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and orders. The right of Contractor to proceed 

may be terminated immediately by written notice if TOWN determines that Contractor, its agent or another 

representative, has violated any provision of law. 

14. Use of Federal Funds. If the source of funds for this Contract is federal funds, the following federal 

provisions apply pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.326  and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II (as applicable):Equal 

Employment Opportunity (41C.F.R. Part 60); Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148); Copeland "Anti-

Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145); Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708); 

Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401- 7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-

1387); Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689); Byrd Anti-Lobbying 

Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352); Procurement of Recovered Materials (2 C.F.R. § 200.322); and Record 

Retention Requirements (2 CFR § 200.324) 

15. Nondiscrimination. During the performance of the Contract, Contractor shall not discriminate against or 

deny the Contract's benefits to any person on the basis of sexual orientation, national origin,  race, ethnic 

background, color, religion, gender, age or disability. 

16. Conflict of Interest. Contractor represents and warrants that no member of TOWN or any of its employees 

or officers who may obtain a direct benefit, personal gain or advantage for themselves or a relative or 

associate as a result of the Contract, subcontract or other agreement related to the Contract is in a position 

to influence or has attempted to influence the making of the Contract, has been involved in making the 

Contract, or will be involved in administering the Contract. Contractor also represents and warrants that, 

if the Contract is funded by any amount of federal funds, no violation of 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) or any other 

applicable federal conflict of interest law has occurred or will occur. Contractor shall cause this paragraph 

to be included in all Contracts, subcontracts and other agreements related to the Contract. 

17. Gratuities. Contractor represents and warrants that no member of TOWN or any of its employees has 

been or will be offered or given a gratuity to an official or employee of TOWN in violation of applicable law 

or policy. 

18. Kickbacks to Contractor. Contractor shall not permit any kickbacks or gratuities to be provided, directly or 

indirectly, to itself, its employees, subcontractors or subcontractor employees for the purpose of 

improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable treatment in connection with a TOWN Contract or in 

connection with a subcontract relating to a TOWN Contract. When Contractor has grounds to believe that 

a violation of this clause may have occurred, Contractor shall promptly report to TOWN in writing the 

possible violation. 

19. Iran Divestment Act. Contractor certifies that, as of the date listed below, it is not on the Final Divestment List, 

as created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143-6A-4, in violation of the Iran Divestment Act. In 

compliance with the requirements of the Iran Divestment Act and N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-5(b), Contractor shall not 

utilize in the performance of the contract any subcontractor that is identified on the Final Divestment List. The 

Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer's website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/lran 

and should be updated every 180 days. 

20. Divestment from Companies that Boycott Israel. The Contractor certifies that it has not been designated 

by the North Carolina State Treasurer as a company engaged in the boycott of Israel pursuant to N.C.G.S. 

147-86.81. It is the responsibility of each vendor or contractor to monitor compliance with this restriction. 

Contracts valued at less than $1,000.00 are exempt from this restriction. 

21. E-Verification. Contractor shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes 

22. Indemnification.   Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless TOWN, its officers, agents, employees 

46

Item 8.

http://www.nctreasurer.com/lran


Page 6 of 9  

and assigns from and against all claims, losses, costs, damages, expenses, attorneys' fees and liability 

that any of them may sustain (a) arising out of Contractor's failure to comply with any applicable law, 

ordinance, regulation, or industry standard or (b) arising directly or indirectly out of Contractor's 

performance or lack of performance of the terms and conditions of the Contract. In the event that any 

Services and/or Goods sold and delivered or sold and performed under the Contract Documents shall be 

defective in any respect whatsoever, Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless TOWN, its officers, 

agents, employees and assigns from all loss or the payment of all sums of money by reason of all 

accidents, injuries or damages to persons or property that shall happen or occur in connection with the 

use or sale of such Services and/or Goods and are contributed to by said condition. In the event 

Contractor, its employees, agents, subcontractors and or lower­ tier subcontractors enter premises 

occupied by or under the control of TOWN in the performance of the Contract Documents, Contractor 

agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless TOWN, its officers, agents, employees and assigns, from 

any loss, costs, damage, expense or liability by reason of property damage or personal injury of 

whatsoever nature or kind arising out of, as a result of, or in connection with such entry. 

23. Insurance. Unless such insurance requirements are waived or modified by the Town, Contractor certifies 

that it currently has and agrees to purchase and maintain during its performance under the Contract the 

following insurance from one or more insurance companies acceptable to TOWN and authorized to do 

business in the State of North Carolina: Automobile - Contractor shall maintain bodily injury and property 

damage liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired automobiles. The policy limits of such 

insurance shall not be less than $1,000,000 combined single limit each person/each occurrence. Commercial 

General Liability - Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability insurance that shall protect Contractor 

from claims of bodily injury or property damage which arise from performance under the Contract. This insurance 

shall include coverage for contractual liability. The policy limits of such insurance shall not be less than $1,000,000 

combined single limit each occurrence/annual aggregate. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

Insurance - If applicable to Contractor, Contractor shall meet the statutory requirements of the State of North 

Carolina for worker's compensation coverage and employers' liability insurance. Contractor shall also provide 

any other insurance or bonding specifically recommended in writing by the Town  or required by applicable 

law. Certificates of such insurance shall be furnished by Contractor to TOWN and shall contain the provision 

that TOWN be given 30 days' written notice of any intent to amend or terminate by either Contractor or the 

insuring company. Failure to furnish insurance certificates or to maintain such insurance shall be a default 

under the Contract and shall be grounds for immediate termination of the Contract. 

24. Termination for Convenience. In addition to all of the other rights which TOWN may have to cancel this 

Contract or an applicable Purchase Order, TOWN shall have the further right, without assigning any 

reason therefore, to terminate the Contract (or applicable Purchase Order), in whole or in part, at any time 

at its complete discretion by providing 10 days' notice in writing from TOWN to Contractor. If the Contract 

is terminated by TOWN in accordance with this paragraph, Contractor will be paid in an amount which 

bears the same ratio to the total compensation as does the Services and/or Goods actually delivered or 

performed to the total originally contemplated in the Contract. TOWN will not be liable to Contractor for 

any costs for completed Goods, Goods in process or materials acquired or contracted for if such costs 

were incurred prior to the date of this Contract or an applicable Purchase Order. 

25. Termination for Default. TOWN may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, immediately and without 

prior notice upon breach of the Contract by Contractor. In addition to any other remedies available to 

TOWN law or equity, TOWN may procure upon such terms as TOWN shall deem appropriate, Services 

and/or Goods substantially similar to those so terminated, in which case Contractor shall be liable to 

TOWN for any excess costs for such similar goods, supplies, or services and any expenses incurred in 

connection therewith. 

26. Contract Funding. It is understood and agreed between Contractor and TOWN that TOWN' obligation 

under the Contract is contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds from which payment for 

Contract purposes can be made. No legal liability on the part of TOWN for any payment may arise until 

funds are made available to TOWN' Finance Officer and until Contractor receives notice of such 

availability. Should such funds not be appropriated or allocated, the Contract shall immediately be terminated. 

TOWN shall not be liable to Contractor for damages of any kind (general, special, consequential  or 

exemplary) as a result of such termination. 

  

47

Item 8.



Page 7 of 9  

27. Accounting Procedures. Contractor shall comply with any accounting and fiscal management procedures 

prescribed by TOWN to apply to the Contract and shall assure such fiscal control and accounting procedures as 

may be necessary for proper disbursement of and accounting for all project funds. 

28. Improper Payments. Contractor shall assume all risks attendant to any improper expenditure of funds under 

the Contract. Contractor shall refund to TOWN any payment made pursuant to the Contract if it is subsequently 

determined by audit that such payment was improper under any applicable law, regulation or procedure. 

Contractor shall make such refunds within thirty {30) days after TOWN notifies Contractor in writing that a 

payment has been determined to be improper. 

29. Contract Transfer. Contractor shall not assign, subcontract or otherwise transfer any interest in the Contract 

without the prior written approval of TOWN. 

30. Contract Personnel. Contractor agrees that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required to 

provide the Services and/or Goods set forth in the Contract. 

31. Key Personnel. Contractor shall not substitute for key personnel (defined as those individuals identified by 

name or title in the Contract Documents or in written communication from Contractor) assigned to the 

performance of the Contract without prior written approval from TOWN Project Coordinator (the individual at 

TOWN responsible for administering the Contract). 

32. Contract Modifications. The Contract may be amended only by written amendment duly executed by both 

TOWN and Contractor. 

33. Relationship of Parties. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee of TOWN. The conduct 

and control of the work will lie solely with Contractor. The Contract shall not be construed as establishing a 

joint venture, partnership or any principal-agent relationship for any purpose between Contractor and TOWN. 

Employees of Contractor shall remain subject to the exclusive control and supervision of Contractor, which is 

solely responsible for their compensation. 

34. Advertisement. The Contract will not be used in connection with any advertising by Contractor without prior 

written approval by TOWN. 

35. Monitoring and Evaluation. Contractor shall cooperate with TOWN, or with any other person or agency as 

directed by TOWN, in monitoring, inspecting, auditing or investigating activities related to the Contract. 

Contractor shall permit TOWN to evaluate all activities conducted under the Contract. TOWN has the right at 

its sole discretion to require that Contractor remove any employee of Contractor from TOWN Property and 

from providing Services and/or Goods under the Contract following provision of notice to Contractor of the 

reasons for TOWN' dissatisfaction with the Services and/or Goods of Contractor's employee. 

36. Financial Responsibility. Contractor is financially solvent and able to perform under the Contract. If requested 

by TOWN, Contractor agrees to provide a copy of i t s latest audited annual financial statements or other 

financial statements as deemed acceptable by TOWN' Finance Officer. In the event of any proceedings, 

voluntary or involuntary, in bankruptcy or insolvency by or against Contractor, the inability of Contractor to 

meet its debts as they become due or in the event of the appointment, with or without Contractor's consent, 

of an assignee for the benefit of creditors or of a receiver, then TOWN shall be entitled, at its sole option, to 

cancel any unfilled part of the Contract without any liability whatsoever. 

37. Governmental Restrictions. In the event any governmental restrictions are imposed which necessitate 

alteration of the material, quality, workmanship or performance of the items offered prior to their delivery, it 

shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to notify, in writing, the issuing purchasing office at once, indicating 

the specific regulation which required such alterations. TOWN reserves the right to accept any such alterations, 

including any price adjustments occasioned thereby, or to cancel the Contract. 

38. Inspection at Contractor's Site. TOWN reserves the right to inspect, at a reasonable time, the equipment/item, 

plant or other facilities of a prospective contractor prior to Contract award, and during the Contract term as 

necessary for TOWN determination that such equipment/item, plant or other facilities conform with the 

specifications/requirements and are adequate and suitable for the proper and effective performance of the 

Contract. 

39. Confidential Information. All information about TOWN provided to the Contractor or its officers, employees, 

agents, representatives and advisors (the "Contractor Representatives"), and all copies or other full or partial 

reproductions thereof and notes, memoranda or other writings related thereto created by Contractor or any 

Contractor Representative, regardless of whether provided before or after the date of the Contract and 

regardless of the manner or medium in which it is furnished, is referred to as "Confidential Information". 

48

Item 8.



Page 8  of 9  

Confidential Information does not include any information that (a) is or becomes generally available to the 

public other than as a result of an impermissible disclosure by Contractor, (b) was known by or available on a 

nonconfidential basis to Contractor before it was disclosed by TOWN or (c) becomes available to Contractor on 

a nonconfidential basis from a third party whom Contractor does not know to be bound by a confidentiality 

agreement with, or have an obligation of secrecy to, TOWN. Except as and to the extent required by law or 

order or demand of any governmental or regulatory authority, Contractor and Contractor Representatives will 

(x) keep all Confidential Information confidential and (y} will only  disclose or reveal any Confidential 

Information to Contractor Representatives who must have the information to fulfill Contractor's obligations 

under the Contract and who agree to observe the terms of this Section. Contractor and Contractor 

Representatives will not use the Confidential Information for any purpose other than fulfilling Contractor's 

obligations under the Contract. By way of example and not limitation, Contractor shall not sell, market, or 

commercialize Confidential Information, create derivative products or applications based on Confidential 

Information. If Contractor is requested or required, pursuant to applicable law or regulation or by legal 

process, to disclose any Confidential Information, Contractor will provide TOWN with prompt and timely notice 

of the requests or requirements so that TOWN can seek an appropriate protective order or other remedy and 

will not be prejudiced by delay. If TOWN does not obtain a protective order or other remedy, Contractor will 

only disclose that  portion of the Confidential Information which Contractor's legal counsel determines 

Contractor is required to disclose. Upon termination of the Contract or otherwise upon TOWN' request, 

Contractor will promptly deliver to TOWN all Confidential Information in the possession of Contractor or the 

Contractor Representatives. 

Employee Personnel Information: If, during the course of Contractor's performance of the Contract, Contractor 

should obtain any information pertaining to employees of TOWN' personnel records, Contractor agrees to keep 

any such information confidential and to not disclose or permit it to be disclosed, directly or indirectly, to any 

person or entity. This section will survive the termination of this Contract. 

40. Intellectual Property. Contractor agrees, at its own expense, to indemnify, defend and save TOWN harmless 

from all liability, loss or expense, including costs of settlement and attorney's fees, resulting from any claim 

that TOWN' use, possession or sale of the Services and/or Goods infringes any copyright, patent or trademark 

or is a misappropriation of any trade secret. 

41. No Pre-Judgment or Post-Judgment Interest. In the event of any action by Contractor for breach of contract in 

connection with the Contract, any amount awarded shall not bear interest either before or after any judgment, 

and Contractor specifically waives any claim for interest. 

42. Background Checks. At the request of TOWN' Project Coordinator, Contractor (if an individual} or any individual 

employees of Contractor shall submit to TOWN criminal background check and drug testing procedures. 

43. Mediation. If a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract, or the breach of the Contract, and if the dispute 

cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation 

administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Mediation Rules before resorting 

to litigation. 

44. No Third-Party Benefits. The Contract shall not be considered by Contractor to create any benefits on behalf 

of any third party. Contractor shall include in all contracts, subcontracts or other agreements relating to the 

Contract an acknowledgment by the contracting parties that the Contract creates no third-party benefits. 

45. Force Majeure. If TOWN is unable to perform its obligations or to accept the Services and/or Goods because of 

Force Majeure (as hereinafter defined), the time for such performance by TOWN or acceptance of Services 

and/or Goods will be equitably adjusted by allowing additional time for performance or acceptance of Services 

and/or Goods equal to any periods of Force Majeure. "Force Majeure" shall mean any delays caused by acts 

of God, riot, war, terrorism, inclement weather, labor strikes, material shortages and other causes beyond the 

reasonable control of TOWN. 

46. Ownership of Documents; Work Product. All documents created pursuant to the Contract shall, unless 

expressly provided otherwise in writing, be owned by TOWN. Upon the termination or expiration of the 

Contract, any and all finished or unfinished documents and other materials produced by Contractor pursuant 

to the Contract shall, at the request of TOWN,  be turned over to TOWN. Any technical knowledge or 

information of Contractor which Contractor shall have disclosed or may hereafter disclose to TOWN shall not, 

unless otherwise specifically agreed upon in writing by TOWN, be deemed to be confidential or proprietary 

information and shall be acquired by TOWN free from any restrictions as part of the consideration of the 

Contract. 

49

Item 8.



 

Page 9  of 9  

47. Strict Compliance. TOWN may at any time insist upon strict compliance with these terms and conditions 

notwithstanding any previous course of dealing or course of performance between the parties to the contrary. 

48. General Provisions. TOWN' remedies as set forth herein are not exclusive. Any delay or omission in exercising 

any right hereunder, or any waiver of any single breach or default hereunder, shall not be deemed to be a 

waiver of such right or of any other right, breach, or default. If action be instituted by Contractor hereunder, 

TOWN shall be entitled to recover costs and reasonable attorney's fees. Contractor may not assign, pledge, or 

in any manner encumber Contractor's rights under this Contract or applicable Purchase Order or delegate the 

performance of any of its obligations hereunder, without TOWN' prior, express written consent. 

49. Contract Situs. All matters, whether sounding in contract or tort relating to the validity, construction, 

interpretation and enforcement of the Contract, will be determined in Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. 

North Carolina law will govern the interpretation and construction of the Contract. 

50. Severability. Any provision of this Contract that is determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 

invalid or unenforceable will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision. Any provision of 

the Contract held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will remain in full force and effect to the 

extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

 

 

50

Item 8.



 

BID BOND INSTRUCTIONS 

1. This form, for the protection of persons supplying labor and material, shall be used whenever a bid bond is required. 

There shall be no deviation from this form without approval by the Town Manager. 

2. Insert the full legal name and business address of the Principal shall be inserted in the space designated "Principal" on 

the face of the form.  The bond shall be signed by an authorized person.  Where such person signing in a 

representative capacity (e.g., an attorney-in-fact), but is not a member of the firm, partnership, or joint venture, 

or an officer of the corporate involved, evidence of his authority must be furnished. 

3. The bond may express penal sum as a percentage of the bid price.  In these cases, the bond may state a maximum dollar 

limitation (e.g., 5% of the bid price but the amount not to exceed dollars). 

4. Corporations executing the bond as sureties must be among those appearing on the U.S. Treasury Department's 

list of approved sureties and must be acting within the limitations set forth therein. 

5. Corporate sureties must be licensed to do business in North Carolina. 

6. In its application to negotiated contracts, the terms "bid" and "bidder" shall include "proposal" and "offeror". 

 

51

Item 8.



BID BOND 
(See Instructions on reverse) 

PRINCIPAL (Legal name and business address) 

DATE BOND EXECUTED (Must be same or later than date of contract) 

TYPE OF ORGANIZATION ("X" one ) 

INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP 

JOINT VENTURE CORPORATION 

SURETY (Name and business address) 

PERCENT 

OF BID 

PRICE 

PENAL SUM OF BOND 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

MILLION(S) THOUSAND(S) HUNDRED(S) CENTS 

BID IDENTIFICATION 

BID DATE CONTRACT NO. 

FOR (Construction Supplies or Services) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, the PRINCIPAL and SURETY above named are held and firmly 

bound unto the Town of Pineville, North Carolina, hereinafter called the Town, in the penal sum of the amount stated 

above, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 

administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

The condition of this obligation is such as to operate as a guarantee that the Principal will fully and promptly execute a contract 

and cause to be executed bonds acceptable to the Town, all as set forth in the proposal or bid, should the same be accepted, 

and that not longer than twenty (20) days after the receipt by the Principal of contract forms from the Town, he will execute a     

contract on the basis of the terms, conditions and unit prices set forth in his proposal or bid together with and accompanied by a 

Performance Bond satisfactory to the Town, in the total amount of said contract, and a Payment Bond in the total amount of the 

contract, and that failure to perform or comply with any or all the foregoing requirements, within the times set forth above, shall 

be just and adequate cause for the annulment of the award; and it is disposal of the Town, not as a penalty, but as an agreed 

liquidated damage. Should each and all of the foregoing conditions be fulfilled and Performance and Payment Bonds, as set 

forth in the proposal, be executed, bonds being satisfactory to the Town, this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise to 

remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden parties have executed this instrument under their several seals on the date 

indicated above, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed 

by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

In Presence of: 

WITNESS (2) 

INDIVIDUAL OR PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPAL 

1. (Seal) 

2. (Seal) 

ATTEST: 

Corporate Secretary 

WITNESS (2) 

CORPORATE PRINCIPAL 

AFFIX CORPORATE 

1. BY 

2. TITLE 

CORPORATE SURETY 

SEAL 

WITNESS (2) 

1. BY 

2. TITLE 

AFFIX CORPORATE 

SEAL 

Countersigned By: 

Resident Agent 

Address: 

52

Item 8.



 

PAYMENT BOND INSTRUCTIONS 
 

1. This form, for the protection of persons supplying labor and material, shall be used whenever a payment bond is 

required.  There shall be no deviation from this form without approval by the Town Manager. 
 

2. The full legal name and business address of the Principal shall be inserted in the space designated "Principal" on 

the face of the form.  The bond shall be signed by an authorized person.  Where such person signing in a 

representative capacity (e.g., an attorney-in-fact), but is not a member of the firm, partnership, or joint venture, 

or an officer of the corporate involved, evidence of his authority must be furnished. 
 

3. Corporations executing the bond as sureties must be among those appearing on the U.S. Treasury Department's list 

of approved sureties and must be acting within the limitations set forth therein. 
 

4. Corporate sureties must be licensed to do business in North Carolina. 

53

Item 8.



PAYMENT BOND 
(See Instructions on reverse) 

PRINCIPAL (Legal name and business address) 

DATE BOND EXECUTED (Must be same or later than date of contract) 

TYPE OF ORGANIZATION ("X" one ) 

INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP 

JOINT VENTURE CORPORATION 

SURETY (Name and business address) 

STATE OF INCORPORATION 

PENAL SUM OF BOND 

MILLION(S) THOUSAND(S) HUNDRED(S) CENTS 

CONTRACT DATE CONTRACT NO. 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, the PRINCIPAL and SURETY above named are held and firmly 

bound unto the Town of Pineville, North Carolina, hereinafter called the Town, in the penal sum of the amount stated 

above, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 

administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the principal entered into a certain contract with the 

Town, numbered and dated as shown and hereto attached: 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons supplying labor and material in the 

prosecution of the work provided for in said contract, and any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that 

may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived, then the above obligation shall 

by void and of no effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden parties have executed this instrument under their several seals on the date 

indicated above, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed 

by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

In Presence of: 

WITNESS (2) 

INDIVIDUAL OR PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPAL 

1. (Seal) 

2. (Seal) 

ATTEST: 

Corporate Secretary 

WITNESS (2) 

CORPORATE PRINCIPAL 

AFFIX 

CORPORATE 

1. BY SEAL 

2. TITLE 

WITNESS (2) 

CORPORATE SURETY 

AFFIX 

CORPORATE 

1. BY SEAL 

2. TITLE 

Countersigned By: 

Resident Agent 

Address: 

54

Item 8.



PERFORMANCE BOND INSTRUCTIONS 

1. This form, for the protection of persons supplying labor and material, shall be used whenever a performance bond

is required.  There shall be no deviation from this form without approval by the Town Manager.

2. The full legal name and business address of the Principal shall be inserted in the space designated "Principal" on

the face of the form.  The bond shall be signed by an authorized person.  Where such person signing in a

representative capacity (e.g., an attorney-in-fact), but is not a member of the firm, partnership, or joint venture,

or an officer of the corporate involved, evidence of his authority must be furnished.

3. Corporations executing the bond as sureties must be among those appearing on the U.S. Treasury Department's

list of approved sureties and must be acting within the limitations set forth therein.

4. Corporate sureties must be licensed to do business in North Carolina.

55

Item 8.



PERFORMANCE BOND 
(See Instructions on reverse) 

PRINCIPAL (Legal name and business address) 

DATE BOND EXECUTED (Must be same or later than date of contract) 

TYPE OF ORGANIZATION ("X" one ) 

INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP 

JOINT VENTURE CORPORATION 

SURETY (Name and business address) 

STATE OF INCORPORATION 

PENAL SUM OF BOND 

MILLION(S) THOUSAND(S) HUNDRED(S) CENTS 

CONTRACT DATE CONTRACT NO. 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, the PRINCIPAL and SURETY above named are held and firmly 

bound unto the Town of Pineville, North Carolina, hereinafter called the Town, in the penal sum of the amount stated 
above, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, 

and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the principal entered into a certain contract with the 

Town, numbered and dated as shown and hereto attached: 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, con-
ditions, and agreements of said contract during the original terms of said contract and any extensions thereof that may be 
granted by the Town with or without notice to the surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the contract, 
and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any 
and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the 
surety being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden parties have executed this instrument under their several seals on the date 

indicated above, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed 

by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body. 

In Presence of: 

WITNESS (2) 

INDIVIDUAL OR PARTNERSHIP PRINCIPAL 

1. (Seal) 

2. (Seal) 

ATTEST: 

Corporate Secretary 

WITNESS (2) 

CORPORATE PRINCIPAL 

AFFIX 

CORPORATE 

1. BY SEAL 

2. TITLE 

WITNESS (2) 

CORPORATE SURETY 

AFFIX 

CORPORATE 

1. BY SEAL 

2. TITLE 

Countersigned By: 

Resident Agent 

Address: 

56

Item 8.



EXHIBIT A2

SCOPE OF SERVICES
FOR

CONSTRUCTION OF FOUNDATIONS, GROUNDING, AND WIREWAYS FOR
ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION

All bids are to be made on a per unit or lump sum basis.  It is intended and should be
understood by the Bidder that this contract includes all the work necessary for the complete
construction of below grade components for an electrical substation to include the items in the
descriptions below. 

The components of the substation station to be installed or constructed by the Contractor
are as follows:

Erosion and Sedimentation Control Measures
Foundations
Grounding and Bonding Systems
Cable Trench, Conduit, and Oil Containment System
Gravelling
Quality Control

The various components of the construction are described as follows:

1. Erosion and Sedimentation Control

Consists of continued maintenance during construction period, roadway preparation
and site drainage, erosion, and sedimentation control measures, including temporary
and permanent seeding and top soil, as indicated on Dewberry drawings for site
construction of Pineville Substation Delivery #4.  It also includes inspection,
reporting, and repair of all erosion control measures and stabilization until 
acceptance by the Department of Environmental Quality and site is turned over to the
Owner at the end of the project.

2. Foundation Construction

Consist of pouring in place rebar enforced concrete foundations as directed on the
plans.  Includes furnishing and installing oil containment drains in transformer pad.

(e) 1

57

Item 8.



3. Grounding and Bonding Systems

Consist of installing Owner Furnished ground grid materials below grade as
instructed on the plans.

4. Cable Trench, Conduit, and  Oil Containment System
Consists of furnishing, installing and connecting Conduits and installing Owner
furnished cable trench as directed on drawings.

The oil containment system includes Contractor furnished and installed piping and
oil sump with oil stop valve.  System will allow storm water to convey off site to
storm water system and contain any oil leaks.

5. Gravelling
Includes furnishing and placing the finish stone on the substation lot within the
fenced area.

(e) 2

58

Item 8.



EXHIBIT B2

ITEM I.
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

FOR
FOUNDATIONS

1.00 Foundations

1.01 General

This section covers the work necessary to furnish and install complete, ready for use all
concrete foundations.  Survey services to locate all foundations are to be furnished by Contractor.

American Concrete Institute "Standard Specification for Structural Concrete for
Buildings", ACI 301-10, is hereby made a part of this specification to the same extent as if bound
herein.  ACI 301-10 shall be amended, supplemented, or deleted as required by the following
paragraphs and as such constitutes the specification for this project.

The various classes of concrete shall be designated as follows:

                                         Minimum 28-day Comp.
Class        Strength in p.s.i.      

  A 4500  lb.
  B 4000  lb.
  C 3000  lb.
  D 2500  lb.
  E 2000  lb.

Unless otherwise specified, all concrete shall be Class "B".

1.02 Portland Cement

Portland cement shall comply with ASTM C-150.

1.03 Fine Aggregate 

Fine aggregate shall comply with ASTM C-33, and shall consist of sand having
clean, hard, durable, uncoated grains, free from deleterious substances.

(e) 3FOUNDATION

59

Item 8.



1.04 Coarse Aggregate

Coarse aggregate shall comply with ASTM C-33 and shall consist of clean gravel or
crushed stone free from soft or elongated pieces and deleterious substances.

In no case shall the maximum size be greater than 75% of the minimum clear spacing
between the reinforcing bars of 20% or the narrowest dimension between the sides of forms.

1.05 Water

Water shall be clear, and free from injurious amounts of oil, acid, alkali, organic matter or
other deleterious substances.  Approval of the Engineer is required on any water source other
than a public water supply intended for domestic consumption.

1.06 Forms

(a) Installation:

Forms shall conform to the shape, lines and dimensions of the members as called for
on the Plans and shall be substantially free from surface defects.

They shall be properly braced or tied together so as to maintain position and shape
before, during and after placing.  The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the
adequacy and safety of the forms.

All forms shall be built and maintained in an excellent condition, so that, when
removed, the concrete will be left with a smooth, presentable surface, free from
offsets, fins, ridges, and other unsightly defects.  Forms shall be cleaned and a thin
coat of form oil applied.

Forms for exposed concrete shall be given special attention to provide a smooth
surface free from defects and form marks so that rubbing and finishing will be kept
to a minimum.

Vertical and horizontal corners of exposed concrete shall be chamfered.

(b) Inspection:

Forms shall be inspected by the Engineer prior to concreting and notice shall be
given twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the pour so that an inspection can be
scheduled.  No concreting may be done in the absence of the Engineer without
written permission of the Engineer.

(e) 4FOUNDATION

60

Item 8.



(c) Removal:

Care shall be exercised to prevent damage of concrete during the removal of forms. 
The following schedule shall be considered the minimum period under normal
conditions when Type I cement is used; but its use shall not in any way relieve the
Contractor of responsibility for the safety and appearance of the structure.

       Temperatures

Above 60 50 - 60 40 - 50
Degrees Degrees Degrees

24 Hrs. 36 Hrs. 72 Hrs.

When the temperature to which form or concrete surfaces are exposed drops below
40 degrees F. the forms shall remain in place an additional time equal to the time of
the sub-40 degree exposure.  If form insulation is used, concrete surface temperature
shall apply.

1.07 Joints

(a) Expansion Joints:

Provide a bulkhead constructed to permit installation of required dowels and
accessories at required expansion joint locations.  After original concrete section has
hardened, remove the bulkhead and place compressible filler strip of required
thickness, and full width of the concrete section.  Secure the strip against
displacement during casting.  Top of strip shall be parallel with the concrete surface
and flush with it unless a recess for application of sealant is required.  Form such
recesses with removable temporary strips.

(b) Construction Joints:

Make and locate so as not to impair the strength of the structure and only at locations
approved.  Do not make additional construction joints without written approval. 
Provide appropriate keys as approved in all construction joints, whether horizontal or
vertical.

1. Provide keyways at least 1½ inches deep in all construction joints in walls,
slabs, and between walls and footings.

2. Place construction joints perpendicular to the main reinforcement.  Continue
all reinforcement across construction joints.

(e) 5FOUNDATION

61

Item 8.



(c) Isolation Joints in Slabs on Grade:

Construct isolation joints in slabs on grade at all points of contact between slabs on
ground and vertical surfaces, such as column pedestals, foundation walls, grade
beams, and elsewhere as indicated.

(d) Control Joints in Slabs on Grade:

Construction control joints in slabs on grade to form panels of patterns as shown. 
Use inserts ¼ inch wide by 1/5 to 1/4 of the slab depth unless otherwise shown.  Use
bulkheads, wire supports or reinforcing bar to hold dowels in alignment at proper
elevation perpendicular to control joint and parallel to each other.

1.08 Conveying and Depositing Concrete

(a) Conveying:

Concrete shall be conveyed by means that will prevent segregation and loss of mortar
from the mix.  Adequate manpower and equipment in the form of buckets, buggies,
chutes, conveyors, pneumatic conveying equipment or other approved means shall be
provided to insure continuous operation.

(b) Depositing:

Prior to the start of the concrete placement, the forms and reinforcing shall be
cleaned and the subgrade or existing concrete shall be cleaned of shavings, chips,
and other foreign matter.  Concrete shall not be deposited in water, (unless so
specifically intended) or on frozen areas.

Concrete shall be deposited as nearly as possible to its final position and shall not be
moved by vibration.  Segregation and overworking shall be kept to a minimum.

Concrete that is contaminated, that has been re-tempered or has taken its initial set
shall not be used.  The elapsed time between the introduction of the mixing water to
the cement and aggregates and the disposition in the work shall, in no case, exceed
one hour and this limit may be reduced by the Engineer, should the rate of hardening
dictate.

Concreting shall be continuous to prevent cold joints and if horizontal joints are
required, they shall be level to present a workmanlike job.

In a combination column-and-slab pour, the slab shall have taken its initial set before
concreting is continued on the column.

(e) 6FOUNDATION

62

Item 8.



(c) Vibration:

All concrete shall be thoroughly vibrated by qualified personnel, taking care to give
complete coverage without causing undue bleeding or segregation.  Vibrators shall
be applied vertically and shall be removed when the first sheen of mortar appears on
the surface.

(d) Placement Under Water:

No concrete shall be deposited under water without written permission of the
Engineer and then only in accordance with his directions.  Proper tremie equipment
and techniques must be used, should the need arise.

(e) Flooding of Concrete:

No water shall be allowed to come in contact with the concrete surface for a
minimum of twenty-four hours.

1.09 Placement of Conduits, Pipes and Sleeves

a. All conduit, pipes, sleeves, and inserts required for drainage and electrical work will
be furnished and installed by the contractor.  The contractor shall be responsible for
coordinating the location and maintaining these items plumb, in alignment and in
place.

b. Conduits, pipes and sleeves of any material not harmful to concrete and within
limitations of this paragraph may be embedded in concrete with the approval of the
Engineer after review of the placement drawings.  Location of reinforcing steel and 
needs for concrete casting compaction shall have priority over the location of all
conduit, pipes and sleeves.  In case of conflicts between the reinforcing and conduit,
pipes or sleeves the Contractor shall notify the Engineer immediately.  If contractor
fails to request interpretation all subsequent changes shall be made without
additional cost to the Owner.

1. Conduits and pipes with fittings embedded within a column shall not display
more than 4 percent of the area of cross-section.

2. Except when drawings for conduits and pipes are otherwise approved,
embedded items shall satisfy the following:

a. Not be spaced closer then 3 diameter or widths on center of the largest
conduit.

b. Have one inch or more of concrete cover and be placed above bottom
reinforcing.

(e) 7FOUNDATION

63

Item 8.



c. Not be tied to parallel reinforcing steel.
d. Provide necessary accessories and supports for conduits and pipes to

ensure concrete cover over reinforcing steel.
e. If the placement of conduit, pipes and sleeves cannot satisfy the above

requirements, the contractor shall submit shop drawings of alternative to
the Engineer for review.

1.10 Special Conditions

(a) Cold Weather Concreting:

Adequate equipment shall be provided for heating the concrete materials and
protecting the concrete during freezing or near-freezing weather.  No frozen
materials nor materials containing ice shall be used.  All concreting operations in
cold weather, when temperatures are below 40 degrees or are expected to fall below
40 degrees shall conform to the requirements of ACI Standard 306.  Special attention
is drawn to the minimum required Placing-and curing Temperatures.

Calcium chloride or other chemicals shall not be used to prevent freezing.  Concrete
damage by freezing shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's own expense.

(b) Hot Weather Concreting:

Care shall be taken to protect the concrete or schedule the operations to avoid
problems incurred with flash set or too-rapid drying conditions.  All concreting
operations during hot weather shall conform to the requirements of ACI Standard
305.

During hot weather, consideration shall be given to maintaining the temperature of
the cement, aggregates and mixing water, such that the temperature of the concrete at
the time of delivery to the job site will be less than 90 degrees F.

1.11 Quality Assurance

(a) Supply all ready mixed concrete from an approved supplier whose plant has been
inspected and found to comply with the requirements of the National Ready Mix
Concrete Association.

(b) All concrete work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract
documents, including strength, tolerances and finishing, must be replaced as directed by
the Engineer at the Contractor's expense.   The Contractor is responsible for the cost of
replacing any other work affected by or resulting from replacement of the concrete work.

(e) 8FOUNDATION

64

Item 8.



1.12 Submittals

(a) Submit each design mix to Engineer for review.

(b) Submit concrete test reports.

(c) Submit proposed construction joint layout and concrete pour sequence to Engineer
for approval.

(d) Ready Mix Delivery Tickets:

1.  Maintain record at job site showing date, time and place of each pour of concrete,
together with ready mix delivery tickets certifying contents of each batch.

2.  Make record available to Engineer for inspection upon request, and upon
completion of the work deliver records to the Engineer.

1.13 Testing

(a) Make a strength test, six cylinders from each mix design placed in any one day. 
Conform to ASTM C 172 and ASTM C 31.

(b) Test two cylinders at seven days, two at 28 days and hold two in reserve.  Testing to
conform to ASTM C 39.

(c) The strength level of the concrete will be considered satisfactory if the average of all
sets of three consecutive strength test results equal or exceed the specified strength and no
individual strength test results falls below the specified strength by more than 500 psi.

1.14 Repair of Defective Areas

(a) Repair rather than replacement shall only be attempted with prior written approval of
the Engineer. 

2.00 Reinforcing Steel

2.01 General

This section covers the work necessary to furnish and install complete reinforcing steel. 
Reinforcing bars shall meet the requirements of ASTM Des:  A615.  Grade shall be as shown on
the drawings but shall be grade 60 unless otherwise noted.

(e) 9FOUNDATION

65

Item 8.



2.02 Protection of Bars

All bars shall be stored off the ground and shall, at all times, be protected from moisture
and be kept free from dirt, oil, or injurious coatings.  If concreting is delayed for any considerable
number of days after the reinforcing is placed in position, it shall be protected by covering with
canvas or other satisfactory covering, or, if directed, shall be painted with a coat of neat cement
grout.  Any bars or fabric having scaly rust shall be cleaned.

2.03 Fabrication and Placement

Metal reinforcing shall be properly fabricated, supported, and securely held in place so
that it will be in the correct position after the concrete has been placed and compacted.  Bars
shall be bent in the shop to the shapes shown or required.  Field bending shall be done only with
the written approval of the Engineer.

Hooks and bends in reinforcing shall be fabricated in accordance with ACI 318.

All bars shall be bent cold.

The placing of reinforcement shall be completed before the commencement of concreting. 
In no case shall any reinforcement be covered with concrete until the amount and position of the
reinforcement has been checked by the Engineer, and his permission given to proceed with the
concreting.

Reinforcing steel shall be adequately secured in position by concrete or metal chairs or
spacers.  Bars shall be fastened together with annealed wire of not less than 18 gauge or other
approved method.

3.00 Backfilling

Backfilling around structures shall not be commenced until directed by the Engineer. 
Backfill around structures may be placed by machine, provided the work shall be done carefully
to prevent damage to the structure.  In no case shall backfill materials be allowed to fall directly
on a structure until at least 12 inches of hand placed material has been placed thereon and
compacted.

Backfill around structures shall be deposited in horizontal layers not more than one foot
in thickness and shall be compacted to prevent settlement.

All excavations shall be backfilled to the original surface of the ground to such other
grades as may be shown, specified or directed.  Backfilling shall be done with suitable excavated
materials, approved by the Engineer, which can be satisfactorily compacted during refilling of the 

(e) 10FOUNDATION

66

Item 8.



excavation.  In the event the excavated materials are not suitable, special backfill obtained from
approved borrow pits shall be used for backfilling.

Stones or pieces of rock greater than one cubic foot in volume shall not be used in any
portion of backfill and all stones shall be distributed and alternated with the earth filling in such
manner than all interstices between them shall be filled with earth.  Frozen earth shall not be used
for backfilling.

Each layer of material shall be thoroughly tamped or rolled to the required degree of
compaction by sheepsfoot or pneumatic rollers, mechanical tampers, or vibrators, unless a
satisfactory compaction is obtained by the travel of trucks and earth moving machines. 
Successive layers shall not be placed until the layer under construction has been thoroughly
compacted.

Where required, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, add sufficient water during
rolling and tamping to assure complete consolidation of the fill material.  If, due to rain or other
causes, the material is too wet for satisfactory compaction, it shall be allowed to dry as required,
before compaction.

Unless otherwise noted, each layer of fill and backfill and the top 12 inches of existing
subgrade material in cuts shall be compacted by approved equipment as specified below.  The
degree of compaction and the density shall be determined by the Standard Proctor Test (ASTM
D698).

Min. Compaction of
STD. Proctor
Maximum Dry Density

All Earth Fill             95%

Top 12 inches of Subgrade or Roadway
and Pad Areas             98%

Bituminous Pavement Base Course              90%

Bituminous Pavement Intermediate Course 95%

Bituminous Pavement Surface Course 95%

Material too dry for proper compaction shall be moistened by suitable watering devices,
turned and harrowed to distribute moisture, and then properly compacted.  When material is too
wet for proper compaction, operations shall stop until such material has sufficiently dried.

(e) 11FOUNDATION

67

Item 8.



4.00 Hauling Material on Streets

When it is necessary to haul material over the streets or pavements, the Contractor shall
provide suitable tight vehicles so as to prevent deposits on the streets or pavements.  In all cases
where any materials are dropped from the vehicles, the Contractor shall clean up the same as
often as directed and keep the crosswalks, streets and pavements clean and free from dirt, mud,
stone, and other hauled material.

5.00 Spoil

In general, all spoil material shall be removed from the site, and the Contractor shall
obtain a place to accommodate it.

6.00 Concrete Protection for Reinforcement

Unless noted on the drawings, minimum cover for reinforcing shall be in accordance
with:

Slabs in contact with water 1"
Walls 2"
Any other concrete in contact
   with soil or water 2"

7.00 Oil Containment Piping

The Contractor shall furnish and install oil containment drain pipes and protective grates
in transformer foundation. 

8.00 Unauthorized Excavation

Whenever excavations are carried beyond or below the lines and grades shown on the
plans, or as given or directed by the Engineer, all such excavated space shall be refilled with
granular material, or other materials as the Engineer may direct.  All material which slides, falls
or caves into the established limits of excavations due to any cause whatsoever, shall be removed
and disposed of at the Contractor's expense.

No extra compensation will be paid the Contractor for any materials ordered for refilling
the void areas left by a slide, fall, cave-in, or any other unauthorized excavation.

9.00 Removal of Water

The Contractor shall at all times during construction, provide and maintain proper the
satisfactory means and devices for the removal of all water entering the excavations, and shall

(e) 12FOUNDATION

68

Item 8.



remove all such water as fast as it may collect, in such manner as shall not interfere with the
prosecution of the work or the proper placing of sewers or masonry, or other work.

Removal of water includes the construction and removal of cofferdams, sheeting and
bracing, the furnishing of materials and labor necessary therefore, excavation and maintenance of
ditches and sluice-ways and the furnishing and operation of pumps, wellpoints, and appliances
needed to maintain thorough drainage of the work in a satisfactory manner.

Water shall not be allowed to rise over or come in contact with any masonry, concrete or
mortar, until at least 24 hours after placement, and no stream of water shall be allowed to flow
over such work until such time as the Engineer may permit.

10.00 Storage of Material

Topsoil suitable for final grading shall be removed and stored on the site separately from
other excavated material.

All excavated materials shall be stored in locations so as not to endanger the work, and so
that easy access may be had at all times to all parts of the excavation.  Stored materials shall be
kept neatly piled and trimmed so as to cause little inconvenience as possible to public travel or to
adjoining property holders.

11.00 Foundation Grating

Contractor shall furnish and install a fiberglass grating system for personnel traffic across
containment portion of transformer pad.  Grating shall be 2" thick and have a 2" x 2" square grid,
McNichols Cat. #F282111C4L or approved equal.  Contractor shall furnish manufacturer’s
recommended galvanized steel support structures attached to concrete to achieve less than 1/2"
deflection under load of 500 lbs/sf uniform.

(e) 13FOUNDATION

69

Item 8.



70

Item 8.



71

Item 8.



72

Item 8.



73

Item 8.



74

Item 8.



75

Item 8.



76

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045    FAX (704) 523-8317 License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER, CIRCUIT SWITCHER, CIRCUIT BREAKERS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND EQUIPMENT BUILDING FOUNDATION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-27-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY QUANTITY AND LENGTH OF ALL REBARS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURAL CONCRETE FOR BUILDINGS', (A.C.I. 301-10) AND 'BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REINFORCED CONCRETE, (A.C.I. 318-14).

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE 'SPECIFICATIONS FOR TOLERANCES FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS. (A.C.I. 117-10).

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE READY-MIXED MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASTM C-94,

AutoCAD SHX Text
'SPECIFICATION FOR READY-MIXED CONCRETE".

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE IS TO BE NORMAL WEIGHT AND MADE WITH TYPE 1 PORTLAND CEMENT CONFORMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO ASTM C150 SPECIFICAIOTN, "STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR PORTLAND CEMENT".

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS F FLYASH IS PERMITTED TO BE USED IN CONCRETE MIXES.  FLYASH IS TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED TO A MAXIMUM OF 20%%% OF TOTAL CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL WEIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE AGGREGATE GRADATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C33 SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"SPECIFICATION FOR CONCRETE AGGREGATE".  FINE AGGREGATE SHALL CONSIST OF NATURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND OR A COMBINATION THEREOF, WITH A FINENESS MODULUS BETWEEN 2.3 AND 3.1 COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGGREGATE GRADATION SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SIZE #57 STONE MIX PER ASTM C33.  FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGGREGATE CONTENT IS TO BE BETWEEN 35%%% AND 45%%% BY WEIGHT OR VOLUME OF THE TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MID RANGE WATER REDUCING ADMIXTURE IN CONFORMANCE WITH AST, C494 TYPE 'A' MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE USED TO REDUCE WATER REQUIREMENTS.  DOSAGE AMOUNT IS NOT TO EXCEED 5 OZ. PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 POUNDS OF CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MIX DESIGNS ARE TO BE PREPARED BY CONCRETE SUPPLIER AND SUBMITTED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL A MINIMUM OF 14 DAYS PRIOR TO CONCRETE WORK COMMENCING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MIX DESIGNS ARE TO BE PROPORTIONED IN ACCORANCE WITH SECTION 5.3 OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.4 OF A.C.I. 318-14.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE IS TO HAVE A 5" MAX. SLUMP, TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C143.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PLACEMENT IS TO CONFORM WITH ACI 305-10 HOT WEATHER CONCRETING AND ACI

AutoCAD SHX Text
306-10 COLD WEATHER CONCRETING.  MINIMUM TEMPERATURE OF CONCRETE AT TIME OF PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MAINTAINED DURING CURING IS 55 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT, IF REQUIRED, SHALL BE NON-METALLIC, NON-SHRINK AND SHALL BE A FACTORY PREPARED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIXTURE OF NON AIR-ENTRAINING PORTLAND CEMENT, WELL GRADED, SHARP SILICA SAND AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER ADMIXTURES AS REQUIRED TO PRODUCE A NON SHRINK GROUT.  GROUT SHALL BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORMED TO ASTM C-1107 GRADE C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMWORK SHALL BE DESIGNED AND CONSTRUCTED/INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 347, R-14.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"GUIDE TO FORMWORK FOR CONCRETE".

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXTERIOR CONCRETE IS TO BE AIR-ENTRAINED WITH TOTAL AIR CONTENT OF 5 PERCENT PLUS OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SHALL BE TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 5.6 OF ACI 318-14 (EVALUATION AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCEPTANCE OF CONCRETE).  QUALIFIED FIELD TESTING TECHNICIANS SHALL PERFORM TESTS ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRESH CONCRETE AT THE JOB SITE, PREPARE SPECIMENS REQUIRED FOR CURING UNDER FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONDITIONS, PREPARE SPECIMENS REQUIRED FOR TESTING IN THE LABORATORY, AND RECORD THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPERATURE OF THE FRESH CONCRETE WHEN PREPARING SPECIMENS FOR STRENGTH TESTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUALIFIED LABORATORY TECHNICIANS SHALL PERFORM ALL REQUIRED LABORATORY TESTS.  SAMPLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR STRENGTH TESTS OF EACH CLASS OF CONCRETE PLACED EACH DAY SHALL BE TAKEN NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESS THAN ONCE FOR EACH 150 CUBIC YARDS OF CONCRETE, NOR LESS THAN ONCE FOR EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5000 SQUARE FEET OF SURFACE AREA FOR SLABS OR WALLS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE DEFECTS, INCLUDING JOINT DAMAGE, HONEYCOMBS, TIE HOLES, SPALLS, AND OTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEFECTS SHALL BE PROPERLY REPAIRED IMMEDIATELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF SECTION 5 OF ACI 301-10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFOUNDATION NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.  %%UCONCRETE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE 'SPECIFICATIONS FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGGREGATE CONTENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.  %%UREINFORCEMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE HIGH STRENGTH DEFORMED BARS CONFORMING TO ASTM A615,

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE 60.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED WIRE MESH SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A185 AND SHALL BE LAPPED ONE FULL MESH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT END SPLICES AND BE WIRED TOGETHER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL DESIGN, DETAILING, FABRICATION AND ERECTION SHALL CONFORM TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.R.S.I. "MANUAL OF STANDARD PRACTICE", 28TH EDITION, A.C.I. 318-14 "BUILDING CODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENTS FOR REINFORCED CONCRETE", AND ACI 315-11, "DETAILS AND DETAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF CONCRETE REINFORCING".

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLICED BARS SHALL NOT BE SPACED TRANSVERSELY FARTHER APART THAN ONE-FIFTH THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED LAP SPLICE LENGTH, NOR 6".  MINIMUM SPLICE LAP LENGTH TO BE 30" FOR #5 BARS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCEMENT PROTECTION SHALL BE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONCRETE POURED AGAINST EARTH___________________________3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CONCRETE POURED IN FORMS EXPOSED TO WEATHER OR EARTH _______2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
     COLUMNS AND BEAMS (TIE BARS) ____________________________1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
     SLABS AND WALL NOT EXPOSED TO WEATHER ____________________3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.  %%UFINISHING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SURFACE IS TO HAVE A FLOATED FINISH AND SHALL BE FINISHED WITH A COMPOSITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLATNESS (fF)=20 AND A  COMPOSITE LEVELNESS (FL)=15 IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM E 1155,

AutoCAD SHX Text
"STANDARD TEST METHOD FOR DETERMINING FLOOR FLATNESS AND LEVELNESS USING THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F-NUMBER SYSTEM".

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED FOUNDATION SURFACES TO RECEIVE (1) COAT OF 30%%% SOLIDS ACRYLIC CURE AND SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOX-CRETE CURE & SEAL 300E AS MFG. BY NOX-CRETE, INC.  OR EQUAL, CONFORMING TO ASTM

AutoCAD SHX Text
C309.  APPLICATION IS TO CONFORM TO MANUFACTURER'S SEPCIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS TO BE RECORDED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR DURING PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE SLAB CONCRETE AND SENT TO THE ENGINEER OF RECORD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - AIR TEMPERATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - CONCRETE TEMPERATURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C1064

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - GENERAL WEATHER CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - CONCRETE SLUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXTERNAL EDGES SHALL HAVE A 3/4" - 45 DEGREE CHAMFER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOSE LAYERS OF 6-INCHES, AND COMPACT EACH LAYER WITH A MINIMUM OF 3 PASSES OF VIBRATORY RAMMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORGANIC MATTER, TRASH, DEBRIS, AND ROCKS LARGER THAN 3-INCHES.  PLACE MATERIAL IN MAXIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL AROUND THE SLAB OR TOP PORTION OF PIER USING EXCAVATED MATERIAL FREE FROM ROOTS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DEWATERING FOUNDATION DURING CONSTRUCTION, IF REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UOWNER TO FURNISH ANCHOR BOLTS FOR STRUCTURES FURNISHED BY SUBSTATION ENTERPRISES.  ALL OTHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLTS TO BE FURNISHED %%UBY CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH (f'c) = 4000 PSI AT 28 DAYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINUS 1.5 PERCENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C260.  CONCRETE SHALL BE TESTED FOR TOTAL AIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - AIR CONTENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C231.

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
22048

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.



6"

17'-6"

1'-0"

9'-6"

6'
-6

"

25'-0"

21
'-0

"

25'-6"

3'
-6

"
10

'-0
"

2'
-0

"

2"
 C

LR

6" 6"3'-3" 3'-3"18'-0"

2'
-6

"
2'

-0
"

R4 #5 BARS

R3 #5 BARS

R2 #5 BARS

1'-0"

20'-6"

R1 #5 BARS

NOTE: 
PROVIDE 3/4" CHAMFER ON
PERIMETER EXPOSED EDGES.

PLAN VIEW
B

SECTION A-A

#5 CONT. 2 @ TOP,
4 TOTAL W/ 1'-0"
OVERLAP

R3 @ 12" O.C.

9"

SE
CT

IO
N 

B-
B

GROUND WIRE
RUNS OVER
WALL AND
UNDER GRATE
IN TWO
PLACES.

NOTCH GRATE AS
REQUIRED FOR
CONDUITS AND
GROUND WIRES

46KV
STRUCTURE

15KV
STRUCTURE

3/
4"

CH
AM

FE
R

@
 4

5°

R1
 @

 1
2"

 O
.C

.

R4
 @

 1
2"

 O
.C

.

9"

2"

6"

CONTROL
CONDUITS PER
CONDUIT &
WIRING
SCHEDULE

INSTALL 6" DRAIN
AND GRATE  TO
OIL SUMP

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

1'-0" 1'-0"

B

AA

3/4"
CHAMFER

@ 45"

R2 @ 12" O.C.

1/16" PER FT.
(TYPICAL

CONTINUOUS
SLOPE TO DRAIN)

2"x2" FIBERGLASS
GRATING SYSTEM

W/ GALVANIZED
STEEL SUPPORTS

77

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEVEL PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16 inch = 1 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045  FAX (704) 523-8317  License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER FOUNDATION DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-27-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.



1 5-13-24 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

78

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT HOUSE FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEIVLLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-27-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1 REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEQUIPMENT HOUSE (EH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN. COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRUSHED AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W10 x W10 x 6 x 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP ALL AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSIDE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#6 REBAR (R1EH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 REBAR, 12" O.C. (R2EH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" x 45%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAMFER (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6 BARS X 19'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UR1EH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UR2EH

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BARS X 2'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DEPTH FROM TOP OF FOUNDATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045  FAX (704) 523-8317  License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT CONCRETE CHANNEL FOR CABLE ENTRANCE. WALLS MIN 3" THICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: TOP OF ADJOINING SECTION OF CABLE TRENCH TO BE EVEN WITH TOP OF HOUSE FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
22048

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.



79

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U15KV BREAKER PAD DETAILS (CB)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9" C/C, TOP & BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 #4 RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" PROJECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" X 1'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CHAMFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
@45%%d

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UR1BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BARS X 4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UR2BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BARS X 4'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8 "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 #4 RODS, %%P10" C/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP & BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 " 1116" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
on source side.

AutoCAD SHX Text
and relay door

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bushings 1, 3, 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8 "58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 " 1116" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 " 1116" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 " 1116" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045    FAX (704) 523-8317

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREAKER FOUNDATION DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-27-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.



80

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2 REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCIRCUIT SWITCHER FOUNDATION (CS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUR 1"x2'-0" ACHOR BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2HHN & 2FW

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBASE & ANCHOR BOLT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R5-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R3-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"ɸ A.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R4-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R3-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R5-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
R3-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
R4-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
R5-CS

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2-CS TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045    FAX (704) 523-8317

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCUIT SWITCHER FOUNDATION DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-27-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.



EXHIBIT B2

ITEM II.
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

FOR
GROUNDING AND BONDING SYSTEMS

1.00 Grounding and Bonding Systems

1.01 General

This section covers the work necessary to furnish and install complete, ready for
operation the grounding and bonding system.  Grounding systems are intended to protect
personnel and equipment from abnormal over-voltages and the effects of ground faults. 
Grounding conductors shall be placed as shown prior to backfill.  All grounding material will be
furnished by the Owner.

1.02 System and Equipment Grounding and Bonding

Grounding conductors shall be copper conductors as specified.

All buried connections shall be made with Owner furnished connectors. 

The Contractor shall exercise care to insure good ground continuity, in particular between
the conduit system and equipment frames and enclosures.  Where necessary, bonding jumpers or
grounding conductors shall be installed.

2.00 Ground Grid

Where shown on the Plans, the Contractor shall install a system of grounding conductors
and driven electrodes which hereinafter is called the ground grid.  The grid is intended to connect
together the various grounding systems.

Grounding electrodes shall be copper-weld or equal rods of not less than 5/8 inch
diameter and not less than 20 feet long, except as otherwise shown or specified.  They shall be
driven where shown on drawings.

(e) 14GROUNDING

81

Item 8.



The grounding grid conductors shall be bare copper conductors, and they shall be
embedded in backfill material around the structures as shown.  The grounding conductors shall
be installed at sufficient depth to avoid conflicts with other underground obstructions, such as
conduits, cable trench and drainage pipes, but in no case shall the depth be less than 2'-0".

All underground conductors shall be laid slack and where exposed to mechanical injury
shall be protected by pipes or other substantial guards.  If guards are iron pipe or other magnetic
material, conductors shall be electrically connected to both ends of the guard to prevent the
inductive choke effect. 

2.01 Fence Grounding

Ground grid installation, also includes attaching conductors to substation fence as shown
on grounding plan and details. 

2.02 Future Equipment Leads

Where structures and equipment are to be installed in future the Contractor shall leave a
1/0 copper lead reaching three feet above grade taped in neat coils at nearest foundation.  Two
4/0 copper leads shall be installed at transformer pad, be routed under grating, and reach an
additional two feet above opposite corners of the supportive center pad.

(e) 15GROUNDING

82

Item 8.



6/5/2025

BILL OF MATERIAL
SUBSTATION ENTERPRISES

145 Commercial Court TOWN OF PINEVILLE
P.O. Box 2010 DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION
Alabaster, AL 35007
Ph. 205-685-2755
Fax. 205-685-2753 PROJECT NO: IK-6855

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

1 26622 MID STEEL STRUCTURES, HOT-DIPPED GALVANIZED AFTER 
FABRICATION AND ASSEMBLED WITHIN LIMITATIONS OF TRUCKING

2 40 UNI ANCHOR BOLT:  1-1/4"  WITH 2HHN,2FW
2A 32 UNI ANCHOR BOLT:  1"  WITH 2HHN,2FW

8 6 SEI SWITCH OPERATOR GROUND PLATFORM, 3' X 4'
8A 24 SEF GTC2-14 GROUND CONN

10 1 CLEAV-
PRICE

V2-CA SWITCH:  46 KV 1200 AMP GROUP OPERTATED VERTICAL BREAK, 
ALUMINUM LIVE PARTS, COMPLETE WITH STANDARD ARCING 
HORNS, SWIND HANDLE OPERATOR, POSITION INDICATORS, WITH 
TR-214 INSULATORS

11 1 CLEAV-
PRICE

V2-CA SWITCH:  15 KV 2000 AMP GROUP OPERTATED VERTICAL BREAK, 
VACUUM INTERRUPTERS, SWING HANDLE OPERATOR, AND TR-205 
INSULATORS

12 4 CLEAV-
PRICE

V2-CA SWITCH:  15 KV 1200 AMP GROUP OPERTATED VERTICAL BREAK, 
STANDARD ARCING HORNS, SWING HANDLE OPERATOR, AND TR-
205 INSULATORS

15 36 CLEAV-
PRICE

LCO-C SWITCH:  15 KV 1200 AMP HOOKSTICK DISCONNECT WITH TINNED 
TERM PADS, AND TR-205 PORCELAIN INSULATORS

15 144 SEIB GMB40058 BOLTS: 5/8" X 4" GMB W/HN,LW,WW

16 6 CLEAV-
PRICE

LCO-C SWITCH:  15 KV 2000 AMP HOOKSTICK DISCONNECT WITH TINNED 
TERM PADS, AND TR-205 PORCELAIN INSULATORS

Page 1 of 8
83

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

16 24 SEIB GMB17558 BOLTS: 5/8" X 1-3/4" GMB W/HN,LW

21 7 S&C 192222R2 FUSE DISCONNECT, 15 KV SMD-20 180 DEG OPENING, VERTICAL 
OFFSET STYLE, TR-205 INSULATORS

21 24 SEIB GMB200 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2" GMB W/HN,LW,WW
21 4 SEIB GMB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" GMB W/HN,LW,FW

21A 2 S&C 612005 FUSE UNIT, 5E STANDARD SPEED, SMU-20

21B 12 S&C 702003 FUSE UNIT, 3K, SMU-20

21C 14 T&B HTDE238012 CURRENT LIMITING FUSE

30 6 NGK PS02510 INSULATOR:  46 KV STATION POST TR-214
30 24 SEIB GCS100 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1" GCS W/LW,FW

31 65 NGK PS01110 INSULATOR:  15 KV STATION POST TR-205
31 260 SEIB GCS100 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1" GCS W/LW,FW

40 6 SIEMENS 3EL10271PE214YH
5

LIGHTNING ARRESTER, 22 KV MCOV STATION CLASS POLYMER

40 18 SEIB GMB275 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2-3/4" GMB W/HN,LW,FW

41 12 SIEMENS 3EK81004EA4 LIGHTNING ARRESTER, 8.4 KV MCOV RISER POLE POLYMER
41 12 SEIB GMB200 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2" GMB W/HN,LW

50 3 RITZ VZF15-20 POTENTIAL TRANSFORMER, 15 KV, 60:1, 0.3 W,X,M,Y
50 12 SEIB GMB15038 BOLTS: 3/8" X 1-1/2" GMB W/HN,LW

51 6 BY OWNER CURRENT TRANSFORMER
51 24 SEIB GMB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" GMB W/HN,LW

52 1 EATON STATION SERVICE TRANSFORMER 25 KVA, 7.2/12.47Y - 120/240V 
SINGLE PHASE

52 4 SEIB GMB17558 BOLTS: 5/8" X 1-3/4" GMB W/HN,LW

53 3 BY OWNER POTENTIAL TRANSFORMER
53 12 SEIB GMB15038 BOLTS: 3/8" X 1-1/2" GMB W/HN,LW

Page 2 of 8
84

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

61 960 WMWA BUS:  4 X 4 X 1/4 UABC  ( 14 PCS @ 40', 16 PCS @ 25' )

63 380 WMWA BUS:  1/2" X 4" AL BAR (19 PCS @ 20')

66 450 NEHR CABLE:  750 MCM BARE COPPER

67 600 NEHR CABLE:  500 MCM BARE COPPER

68 3000 NEHR CABLE:  4/0 BARE COPPER 

69 1200 NEHR CABLE:  1/0 BARE COPPER 

69A 600 NEHR CABLE:  #2 BARE COPPER SOLID TINNED

70 12 TEE CONN BOLTED 4" UABC MAIN TO 4" AL BAR TAP
70 96 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

70A 10 TEE CONN BOLTED 4" UABC MAIN & TAP
70A 40 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

70B 3 SEF TCRCT-2020H TEE CONN BOLTED 500 CU MAIN & TAP

70C 6 SEF TDRDT-3434 TEE CONN BOLTED (2) 750 CU MAIN & TAP

70D 6 SEF UNN-5361 TEE CONN BOLTED 750 CU TO LA PAD

70F 21 TEE CONN BOLTED UABC MAIN TO 4" AL BAR TAP
70F 84 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

70G 3 SEF UN-4656T TEE LUG CONN 500 CU TO LA PAD

71A 7 COUPLER STRAIGHT 4" UABC
71A 7 SMI 2SB1 SPLICE PLATES
71A 14 SMI 3SB1 SPLICE PLATES
71A 28 SEIB SSB150 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-1/2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW
71A 56 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72 123 SEF FNCT-20H-4A-SS TERM CONN BOLTED 500 CU TO 4-HOLE PAD

Page 3 of 8
85

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

72 492 SEIB SSB150 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-1/2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72B 30 SEF FNCT2-34-4B-SS TERM CONN BOLTED (2) 750 CU TO 4-HOLE PAD
72B 120 SEIB SSB200 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72C 2 SEF FNCT-34-4A-SS TERM CONN BOLTED 750 CU TO 4-HOLE PAD
72C 8 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72D 3 TERM CONN 4" UABC TO 4-HOLE PAD AT 90 DEGREES
72D 3 SMI 5AC1 ANGLE CLIP, 4" UABC
72D 24 SEIB SSB200 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72E 39 TERM CONN 4" AL BAR TO 4-HOLE PAD
72E 156 SEIB SSB200 BOLTS: 1/2" X 2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72F 21 SEF FNCT-12-2A-SS TERM CONN BOLTED #2 CU TO 2-HOLE PAD
72F 42 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

72G 12 SEF FNCT-20H-2B-SS TERM CONN BOLTED 500 CU TO 2-HOLE PAD ( FOR TERMINATOR )
72G 24 SEIB SSB150 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-1/2" SSB W/ HN, LW, 2FW

73 3 SEF CJ-3 BUS SUPPORT 500 CU TO 3" B.C.

73A 68 BUS SUPPORT 4" UABC/AL BAR TO 3" B.C.
73A 49 SMI SLP-3 LOCKING STRIPS, 3" B.C.  ( FOR SLIP-FIT ONLY )
73A 136 SEIB GCS100 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1" GCS W/ SS LW, SS FW

74A 12 SMI ST-100 HOTLINE STIRRUP 2-HOLE TO LOOP
74A 24 SEIB SSB150 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-1/2" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

74B 12 LH P1530AGP HOT LINE CLAMP

75 22 SEF GFCS-5050 PARALLEL CONN 1/0 CU 

78 25 SMI TP-C TRANSITION PLATE 4-HOLE

78A 7 SMI TP-B TRANSITION PLATE 2-HOLE

Page 4 of 8
86

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

78B 3 SMI TP-D TRANSITION PLATE 4-HOLE

79 18 SEF GFCS-6262 CABLE SPACER, 750 CU

79A 7 SEF SNFT-44-4A STUD CONNECTOR, 1-1/2"-12 STUD TO 4-HOLE PAD

80 50 SEF GTC2-14 GROUND CONN TWO PIECE DOUBLE GROOVE 4/0 CU TO FLAT

80A 150 SEF GTC-14 GROUND CONN TWO PIECE SINGLE GROOVE 4/0 CU TO FLAT

80B 12 SEF 1-OC-2648 GROUND CLAMP 1-1/2" PIPE TO 1/0 CU

80D 16 SEF FNCT-12-2A-SS GROUND TERMINAL 1/0--4/0 CU TO 2-HOLE PAD
80D 32 SEIB SSB175 BOLTS: 1/2" X 1-3/4" SSB W/HN,LW,2FW

81 2 SEF GU1-6312 FENCE CLAMP 3-1/2" IPS GATE POST TO 4/0 CU

81A 4 SEF 1-OC-2648 FENCE CLAMP 1-1/2" IPS GATE FRAME TO #2--2/0 CU

81B 3 SEF GU1-6012 FENCE CLAMP 2-1/2" IPS CORNER POST TO  4/0 CU

81C 14 SEF GU1-5812 FENCE CLAMP 2" IPS LINE POST TO 4/0 CU

81D 22 SEF 1-OC-2548 FENCE CLAMP 1-1/4" IPS TOP RAIL TO #2 CU

81E 72 BURNDY KSU23 FENCE CLAMP SPLIT BOLT #2 CU TO BARB WIRE

81G 2 BURNDY BD24G203 GROUND BRAID

82 28 NEHR GROUND ROD 3/4" X 8' COPPERWELD SECTIONAL

82A 16 PRI GROUND ROD COUPLER 3/4"

82B 3 PRI GROUND ROD DRIVING STUD

83 1 HARGER GS344/0P MOLD, 3/4" ROD TO 4/0 CU
83 20 HARGER NUWTUBE150 WELD METAL

83A 1 HARGER XO4/04/0Q MOLD CROSS CONN 4/0 TO 4/0

Page 5 of 8
87

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

83A 30 HARGER NUWTUBE250 WELD METAL

83B 1 HARGER RT4/04/0B MOLD, TEE CONN 4/0 TO 4/0 CU
83B 35 HARGER NUWTUBE150 WELD METAL

83C 2 HARGER RT4/01/0B MOLD, TEE CONN 4/0 TO 1/0 CU
83C 60 HARGER NUWTUBE90 WELD METAL

83E 3 HARGER MH1 MOLD HANDLES

101 9 UTICOM U1014D-G-U2200R SIGN: "DANGER - HIGH VOLTAGE"
101A 2 UTICOM U1014N-PPNT-

U2200
SIGN: "NOTICE - NO TRESPASSING"

101B 17 UTICOM U1014W-G-U2200R SIGN: "WARNING HAZARDOUS VOLTAGE INSIDE - KEEP OUT"

101C 2 UTICOM U7010D-S2-
U2200R

SIGN: "DANGER" BATTERY SIGNS

102 1 HAST 3118 HOOKSTICK DISCONNECT STICK
102 1 V&W CONTAINER
102 1 HAST 01-3200-41 FENCE MOUNTING KIT
102 1 HAST 01-3200 CANISTER KIT

103 1 KEN DISCONNECT TYPE TEST SWITCH, STATES C3-403-D
103 1 KEN ENCLOSURE, HOFFMAN A12R126HCR
103 1 KEN BACK PANEL, HOFFMAN A12N12P

104 1 KEN STATION SERVICE PANEL, OUTDOOR CIRCUIT BREAKER LOAD 
CENTER RATED SINGLE PHASE, THREE WIRE, 120/240 VOLTS AC, 200 
AMPS, 10,000 AMPS SYMMETRICAL SHORT CIRCUIT RATING.  WITH 
ONE 200 AMP MAIN BREAKER, (42) SINGLE-POLE 1" BREAKER 
POSITIONS, AN EQUIPMENT GROUNDING BAR, IN A NEMA 3R 
ENCLOSURE WITH PROVISION FOR GROUNDING AND A CIRCUIT 
DIRECTORY.  LOAD CENTER FURNISHED WITH (1) TWO-POLE 60A 
BREAKER, (16) TWO-POLE 20A BREAKERS, AND (8) SINGLE POLE 20A 
BREAKERS AND WITH CONDUIT HUB FOR 2" RISER.  RISER 
FURNISHED WITH WEATHERHEAD AND MOUNTING STRAPS TO 
REACH TO THE SECONDARY TERMINALS OF THE SS XFMR

Page 6 of 8
88

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

105 1 KEN MANUAL TRANSFER SWITCH

106 1 KEN GALVANIZED METAL BOX, 12" X 12" X 20"

110 1 CONCAST CABLE TRENCH SYSTEM TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:
110 10 CONCAST 8820PT PEDESTRIAN/TIER 8 CHANNEL, 96"
110 46 CONCAST 8021PTP PED TRAFFIC POLYMER COVER, 24"
110 2 CONCAST 8022PT(0X20) PED CHANNEL UNIVERSAL, 48"
110 3 CONCAST 8023PT PED/TIER 8 TRAFFIC END PLATE
110 1 CONCAST 8020HT 12" HEAVY TRAFFIC CHANNELL 12"
110 4 CONCAST 8820HT3 HEAVY TRAFFIC CHANNELL 96"
110 16 CONCAST 8021HT3P HEAVY TRAFFIC COVER, 24"
110 1 CONCAST 8021HT3P 12" HEAVY TRAFFIC COVER, 12"
110 1 CONCAST 8023HT3 HEAVY TRAFFIC END PLATE
110 2 CONCAST 8000 MANUAL LIFTING TOOL
110 25 CONCAST 8002R CABLE CLIP
110 25 CONCAST 8002PT CABLE CLIP
110 2 CONCAST 8006 CORNER PROTECTOR
110 4 CONCAST 9002 SWIVEL HOIST RING
110 1 CONCAST 9003 4-WAY LIFTING CHAIN

115 BY OTHERS TERMINATORS

116 6 TE BCAC-G-IC-
10.5D/20 (B6)

BUSHING CONNECTION INSPECTION COVER, TRANSFORMER LV 
BUSHING

117 3 TE BCIC-G-13D/13-HO 
(B3)

BUSHING CONNECTION COVER, TRANSFORMER LA

118 142 MIDSUN 138-24-01G BUS ISOLATION E/FLEX BARRIER

119 45 TE BSIG-G-100/400 
(B3)

ANGLE BUS SUPPORT COVER

120 18 TE BCAC-G-4D/13-
2(B18)

TERMINATION COVER

Page 7 of 8
89

Item 8.



6/5/2025

ITEM QTY MFG CAT. NO. DESCRIPTION

121 24 TE BCAC-G-IC-7D/12 
(B6)

BREAKER BUSHING COVER

122 6 TE BCAC-G-IC-5D/6 
(B6)

PT BUSHING COVER

123 24 TE BCAC-G-AR-5D-
2(B24)

LIGHTNING ARRESTER COVER

124 200 TE MVCC-G-10/.40 
(B100)

MEDIUM VOLTAGE CONDUCTOR COVER (UP TO 0.45")

125 400 TE MVCC-G-25/1.0 
(B25)

MEDIUM VOLTAGE CONDUCTOR COVER (0.75" TO 1.125")

127 6 TE BCAC-P-IC-5D/6 
(B6)

STATION SERVICE TRANFORMER BUSHING COVER

160 BY OTHERS LIGHTS, CONDUIT, CONTROL CABLE, JUNCTION BOXES, ETC

Page 8 of 8
90

Item 8.



DATE: BY:06-05-25 LJW

91

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U  GROUNDING PLAN  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
160'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
125'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
81A

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81G

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81A

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81G

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81B

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81B

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-04-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 (46/15kV) SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LJW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LJW

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
116"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 Commercial Court, P.O. Box 2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
Alabaster, AL  35007

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: (205)685-2755, Fax: (205)685-2753

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
HK-6855-GP1

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/0 COPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE GROUND CONNECTION 4/0 TO 4/0

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'x4' GROUND MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 3/4" x 8'-0" GROUND ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 COPPER (TAPS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE GROUND CONNECTION 4/0 TO 1/0

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 CU TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSS GROUND CONNECTION 4/0 TO 4/0

AutoCAD SHX Text
83A

AutoCAD SHX Text
83B

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
82A

AutoCAD SHX Text
69A

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY



92

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCORNER POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULINE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFOR STRUCTURE GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/0 CU GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 CU

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 CU UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
80A

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWING HANDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL OPERATING PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRAID

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND GRID

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPERATOR'S PLATFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCH OPERATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UGROUNDING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 COPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEEP OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 CU TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/0 CU FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEEP OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 CU

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81G

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 CU

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 CU TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/0 CU FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 CU TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/0 CU

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
81B

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/0 CU FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDOUBLE GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
81D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM #

AutoCAD SHX Text
81E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81G

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81B

AutoCAD SHX Text
81C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: USED FOR #2 TINNED TO BARBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: TOP RAIL TO #2 TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRAID: GATE POST TO GATE FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: GATE FRAME TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: GATE POST TO 4/0 CU,

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: CORNER POST TO 4/0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND CONN: LINE POST TO 4/0 CU

AutoCAD SHX Text
CU AND (2) #2 TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND #2 TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#2 TINNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
83C

AutoCAD SHX Text
81A

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LJW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LJW

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
145 Commercial Court, P.O. Box 2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
Alabaster, AL  35007

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phone: (205)685-2755, Fax: (205)685-2753

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-04-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 (46/15kV) SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HK-6855-GP2



EXHIBIT B2

ITEM III.
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

FOR
CABLE TRENCH, CONDUIT, AND

OIL CONTAINMENT SYSTEM

1.00 General

This section covers the work necessary to install complete an Owner furnished electrical
precast concrete cable trench and a Contractor furnished conduit system and oil containment
system.

1.01 Cable Trench

The precast concrete cable trench system installed in earth trenches with covers extending
above the surrounding gravel rock surfacing shall be constructed at the locations shown on the
construction drawings.

The trench system shall consist of precast concrete member or members and removable
cover sections assembled to form a completely enclosed trench with open earth bottom having
four inches of Contractor furnished sand bedding.

The trench system shall be constructed to grade as necessary for top of removal covers to
be at an elevation approximately two (2) inches above the elevation of the finished rock surfacing
of the area as required by the construction drawings, including all necessary excavation and
backfill.

1.02 Installation

The trench system shall be installed on a mechanically compacted four inch sand and
gravel bedding in accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions.

All trenches shall be protected against entrance of construction debris, rock and earth
during construction and after placing the sand and gravel bedding.

Trenches shall be cleaned out of any foreign material prior to placing cables and before
placing covers. 

Drainage for the cable trench shall be provided with Contractor furnished gravel,
perforated drainage pipe, and geotextile filter cloth, as shown on the construction drawings.  A 

(e) 16CABLE TRENCH

93

Item 8.



four inch drain shall be installed under total length of trench.  The Contractor shall be responsible
for extending the drainage system to the drainage area beyond the fence on the low side of the
substation and to outlet to storm water system.

1.03 Material

The trench system shall be Owner furnished and Contractor installed in widths and
lengths shown on Concast Drawing 40884-6855.  Trench shall be 12" deep.  The precast trench
covers shall be furnished in section of lightweight construction, sized to permit removal by a
single person.  All covers shall have slots for lifting tools.

2.00 Conduits, Raceways, and Wireways

2.01 General

This section covers the work necessary to furnish and install, complete, ready for
operation the electrical raceway systems.  The Contractor shall submit approval drawings
showing the material to be installed in the work, the details of hangers, sleeves, and inserts, and
the locations of all pull and junction boxes.

2.02 Heavy Wall PVC Conduit

Use rigid PVC conduit, Schedule 40, UL listed for concrete-encased, underground direct
burial, concealed and direct sunlight exposed use, and UL listed and marked for use with
conductors having 90 degrees C insulation.  Use conduits, couplings, bushings, elbows, nipples,
and other fittings meeting the requirements of NEMA TC 2 and TC 3, Federal Specifications 
W-C-1094, UL, NEC, and ASTM specified tests for the intended use.

2.03 Fittings

Fittings for PVC conduit shall comply with Standard for PVC Fittings for use with Rigid
PVC Conduit and Tubing, NEMA TC-2 and shall be NEMA Type IV.  All couplings shall be of
the long barrel type.

2.04 Installation

Rigid Polyvinyl chloride conduit, U.L. approved as non-metallic conduit for use above or
below ground shall be used underground, in gravel or earth under concrete slab on grade, and in
exposed corrosive locations indicated on the drawings. 

Underground raceways shall be installed a minimum of 1'-6" below grade.  Couplings in
multiple conduit runs shall be staggered so that couplings in adjacent runs are not at the same
location.

(e) 17CABLE TRENCH

94

Item 8.



Underground raceways shall maintain a minimum separation of 12 inches vertical and
horizontal from other piping systems.

Except as otherwise shown and specified, all conduit work runs shall be parallel to
horizontal planes and shall be neatly aligned.  Elbows and offsets shall be used wherever
possible; for bends made in the field, an approved conduit bending machine shall be used.  Field
bends shall be symmetrical and carefully made so as to prevent damage or deformation of
conduit.  Any conduit which has been crushed or deformed in any way shall not be installed. 
Routing of conduits shall be of the shortest possible and compatible with good layout.  the
number of bends, offsets and crossovers shall be kept to a minimum.  the Contractor shall
exercise the necessary precautions to prevent lodgement of dirt in conduits, boxes and fittings
during installation.  A run of conduit which has become clogged shall be swabbed to remove all
foreign matter or shall be replaced.

All conduit shall be made up watertight.

Where practicable, conduit runs shall be slightly pitched to facilitate draining the
condensate or shall be otherwise installed to prevent trapping of condensation.

Contractor shall terminate and cap all control conduit runs one foot above grade where
indicated on plans.  Caps shall not be glued on.

2.05 Empty Raceways

All empty raceways shall be provided with manufactured removable caps and a nylon pull
cord.

3.00 Oil Containment System

Contractor shall install a drainage system as shown on Drawing 24-40-28 which includes
oil sump and drain lines.  Drains shall be installed in a manner that provides consistent
downward slope and water shall exit beyond station fence to storm water system.  Oil sump shall
be Vital Fuel Systems, (919) 303-7374, Model SOS-6 with stop valve.  Only Engineer approved
substitutions are acceptable.

(e) 18CABLE TRENCH

95

Item 8.



96

Item 8.



97

Item 8.



98

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL TRENCH TO CONDUIT TRANSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D ELBOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONDUIT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLES MUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE LAYED NEATLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND AND GRAVEL BED TO BE MECHANICALLY COMPACTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TRENCH TO BE SLOPED AWAY FROM EQUIPMENT HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND FROM HIGH TO LOW POINT OF LOT TO PROVIDE DRAINAGE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERS SHALL BE PLACED ON TRENCH BEFORE BACKFILLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGAINST SIDEWALLS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BACKFILLING SHALL BE DONE BY HAND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL TRENCH CROSS-SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UDRAIN DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SAND &

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BED

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.           REVISION             DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TRENCH DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-26

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PERFORATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE PIPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TRENCH AND LIDS TO BE PROVIDED BY OWNER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL OTHER MATERIAL TO BE FURNISHED BY CONTRACTOR.



99

Item 8.



EXHIBIT B2

ITEM IV.

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS
FOR

GRAVELLING

1.00 Grading and Gravel

1.01 General

The Contractor shall perform fine grading after all construction excavation is completed
to return the station lot to a smooth grade, and furnish and spread gravel over the entire fenced
area to a depth of 6" above grade.  Gravel cover shall consists of 3" of ABC and 3" of 67M stone
top cover.

(e) 19GRAVELLING

100

Item 8.



125'

160'

13'-0" 3'-6" 21'-0" 3'-6"

15'-0" 20'-0"

30'-0"

37'-0"12'-0"

8'-0"

59'-6"

35'-0"

35'-0"

XXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

7'-6"
CB

7'-6"

7'-6"

7'-6"

7'-6"

7'-6"

7'-6"

CB

CB

CB

7'-6"

TRAN

2'-6"
CS

CS

EH

FD-4

FD-3

FD-2

FD-2

7'-0"

5'-0"

X
X

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X

X

X
X

X

FD-4

FD-4

FD-4

FD-3

FD-3

FD-3

FD-3FD-3

FD-3

FD-3

FD-3

FD-3

12'-0"

3'-0"

15'-0"

19'-6"

FD-1

2'-6"
8'-0"

FD-1

14'-10"

10'-8"

10' 5' 0' 10' 20'

SCALE: 1"=10'

101

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045  FAX (704) 523-8317  License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION LOCATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-13-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
22048

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.



XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

CB

CB

CB

CB

TRANFD-1

FD-1

X
X

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X

X

LEGEND

4/0 SOFT DRAWN COPPER BELOW GRADE, AND TO
TRANSFORMER. 1/0 SOFT DRAWN COPPER FOR
STRUCTURE GROUND (EXCLUDING TRANSFORMER).

#2 CU TINNED

GROUND PLATFORM

(2) GROUND RODS WITH CONNECTOR AND COUPLING

GROUND CONNECTOR (4/0 TO 1/0 CONNECTION)

GROUND CONNECTOR (4/0 TO 4/0 CONNECTION)

20
' D

OU
BL

E 
SW

IN
G

DR
IV

E 
GA

TE

X

XX

EH

160'-0"

125'-0"
FD-2

FD-2

FD-3 FD-3

FD-3FD-3

FD-3 FD-3

FD-3FD-3

FD-3 FD-3

FD-4

FD-4

FD-4

FD-4

CS

CS

TRAN

10' 5' 0' 10' 20'

SCALE: 1"=10'

MOVE EQUIPMENT HOUSE3-5-251

102

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045  FAX (704) 523-8317  License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-13-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.



XXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

TRAN

CSW

EH

X
X

X
X

X

XXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X

X

X
X

X

3"x4
MIN. 36"
DEEP

3"x4
MIN. 36"
DEEP

3"x4
MIN. 36"
DEEP

LT4

VITAL SOS-6 OIL SUMP W/ STOP VALVE
N.T.S.

NOTES:

1. SEE CONCAST DWG. 40684-6855 FOR CABLE TRENCH
DETAILS. EXCEPTION TO THIS DRAWING IS ONLY
THREE SECTIONS OF TRAFFIC TRENCH REQUIRED.

2. COORDINATE CONNECTION OF TRANSMISSION AND
DISTRIBUTION DUCTS TO EXTERIOR DUCT BANK WITH
HUSS BORING. SUBSTATION CONTRACTOR TO EXTEND
DUCTS BEYOND 20' PLANTING STRIP. HUSS WILL
ALSO NEED ACCESS TO STATION TO PULL AND
TERMINATE CABLES.

SEE NOTE 2

LT3

1"x2
4" PERFORATED
GEOTEXTILE
COVERED
DRAINAGE PIPE

EXTEND 4"
CABLE TRENCH
DRAIN TO BMP

POND
EXTEND 6"

SUMP OUTFLOW
TO BMP POND

OIL SUMP

1"x2

LT5LT2

1"x2
1"x2

MIN. 36" DEEP
4"X4

LT1
2"x1

3"x4
2"x1

MIN. 36" DEEP

SEE NOTE 2

1.5"x6

1.5"x5

1.5"x5

1.5"x5

1.5"x5

1.5"x5

1.5"x6
2"x1

STATION
AC

BKR 1

BKR 2

BKR 3

BKR 4

PEDESTRIAN RATED

TR
AF

FI
C 

RA
TE

D

PE
DE

ST
RI

AN
 R

AT
ED

2"x1

DUKE
MTR

DUKE
PT

1.5"x1

PT

6" SCH. 40 PVC

5'

4'

4'

10' 5' 0' 10' 20'

SCALE: 1"=10'

103

Item 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIS/Mapping

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peak Generation; Utility Rates

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCADA Systems; Load Management

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Transmission, Distribution, & Substations

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL (704) 523-6045  FAX (704) 523-8317  License No.: F-0181

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 Minuet Lane, P.O. Box 240436, Charlotte, NC 28224

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEASTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Consulting Engineers, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE ISSUED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-40-28

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELIVERY NO. 4 SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TRENCH, CONDUIT AND OIL CONTAINMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF PINEVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-13-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.J.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
22048

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.



 

 

RESOLUTION 2025-17 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PINEVILLE APPROVING 

THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, Electricities staff, on behalf of the Town of Pineville, solicited formal bids from vendors in 

accordance with the provisions of NCGS 143-129; and 

 

WHEREAS, Hux Contracting LLC submitted a bid with the lowest cost for an annual contract for labor, equipment 

for construction of a foundation and below grade construction of Delivery No. 4 Pineville, for FY26, for a total 

price of $517,851.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, Hux Contracting LLC declares their bid is made without connection with any other person, company, 

or parties making a similar bid or proposal, and that the bid is in all respects fair and in good faith, without 

collusion or fraud; and 

 

WHEREAS, Hux Contracting LLC has carefully examined the annexed form of specifications and instructions to 

bidders and hereby declares that they will furnish the equipment called for in the manner prescribed in the 

specifications and instructions to bidders; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Pineville desires to approve the contact with Hux Contracting LLC that was the lowest 

bid; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Pineville, NC, hereby awards the 

purchase of said foundation and below grade construction of Delivery No. 4 for Pineville to Hux Contracting LLC 

and authorizes the Town Manager to execute any and all documents necessary for the sale. 

 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

ADOPTED by the Town Council this 14th day of October 2025. 

 

 

 

         _______________________________________ 

         Mayor David Phillips 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Town Clerk Lisa Snyder 

104

Item 8.



                     TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

________________________________________________________ 

MEETING DATE: October 14, 2025 

 
Agenda Title/Category: 
 

Name Clearing Hearing Policy 

Staff Contact/Presenter: 
 

Ryan Spitzer 

Meets Strategic Initiative or 
Approved Plan: 
 

 Yes No If yes, 
list: 

 

 x 

Background: 
 
 
 
 

This policy establishes a procedure to protect the due 
process rights of Town employees by providing an 
opportunity for a Name-Clearing Hearing when the Town 
makes, or is alleged to have made, stigmatizing 
statements in connection with an employee’s separation 
from employment. The goal is to ensure compliance with 
the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. 

Discussion: 
 
 
 
 

Any changes to the Policy. 

Fiscal impact: 
 
 

 

Attachments: 
 
 
 
 

Name Clearing Hearing Policy 

Recommended Motion to be made 
by Council: 
 
 

Approve the Name-Clearing Hearing Policy 
to be included in the Town’s Employee 
Handbook. 

 

105

Item 9.



1 
 

I. Purpose 

This policy establishes a procedure to protect the due process rights of Town 

employees by providing an opportunity for a Name-Clearing Hearing when the Town 

makes, or is alleged to have made, stigmatizing statements in connection with an 

employee’s separation from employment. The goal is to ensure compliance with the 

Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, relevant Federal and State Law, and to 

preserve both employee rights and the Town’s integrity. 

 

II. Legal Background 

1. Under the Fourteenth Amendment, public employees have a protected liberty 

interest in their good name, reputation, honor, and integrity. 

2. A right to a Name-Clearing Hearing arises when: 

o The Town makes or places into an employment record stigmatizing 

statements (e.g., allegations of dishonesty, immorality, criminal conduct, or 

similar charges that could harm the employee’s reputation); 

o Such statements are false or disputed by the employee; and 

o The statements are made public or are reasonably likely to be disclosed to 

prospective employers (see Board of Regents v. Roth, 408 U.S. 564 

(1972); Sciolino v. City of Newport News, 480 F.3d 642 (4th Cir. 2007)). 

3. North Carolina law follows this principle (see Moore v. City of Creedmoor, 345 

N.C. 356 (1997)). 

 

III. Scope 

This policy applies to all Town employees, including full-time and part-time who 

separate from employment through resignation, termination, or non-renewal. 

 

IV. Definitions 

 Stigmatizing Statement: A statement by the Town that accuses an employee of 

dishonesty, immorality, criminal behavior, or other conduct that could seriously 

damage their standing or foreclose future employment opportunities. 

 Public Dissemination: Any intentional or likely disclosure of stigmatizing 

information to persons outside the Town organization, including placement in a 

personnel file accessible to prospective government employers. 

106

Item 9.



2 
 

 Name-Clearing Hearing: An opportunity for the employee to present evidence, 

refute stigmatizing charges, and make a statement for the record. 

 

V. Policy 

1. An employee who believes that stigmatizing and/or false statements have been 

made public or placed in their personnel record in connection with separation 

from the Town may request a name-clearing hearing. 

2. The hearing is not a grievance or appeal of termination; it does not determine 

reinstatement, discipline, or damages. Its sole purpose is to allow the employee 

to clear their name. 

3. The Town will provide such a hearing in a timely and fair manner upon request. 

 

VI. Procedure 

1. Request for Hearing 

o The employee must submit a written request to the Town Manager (or 

designee) within 30 calendar days of learning of the alleged stigmatizing 

statement. 

o The request must specify the statement(s) the employee contends are 

false and stigmatizing. 

2. Review of Request 

o The Town Manager (or designee) will determine whether the allegations, if 

true, implicate a liberty interest under applicable law. 

o If so, a hearing will be scheduled. If not, the employee will be notified in 

writing with an explanation. 

3. Scheduling 

o A hearing will be scheduled within 45 calendar days of the request, unless 

extended for good cause. 

o The employee will receive written notice of the time, place, and 

procedures of the hearing. 

4. Conduct of the Hearing 

o The hearing is informal and non-adversarial. 

107

Item 9.



3 
 

o The panel to preside over the hearing will consist of: 1) The Town 

Manager (or designee not directly involved in the underlying matter), 2) 

The Mayor (or designee not directly involved in the underlying matter), 3) 

Town Attorney, 4) a person appointed by the Town Manager. 

o The employee may be represented by legal counsel or another 

representative of their choice. 

o The employee may present documents, witnesses, or other evidence to 

refute the stigmatizing charges. 

o The Town may present relevant evidence but is not required to prove the 

underlying charges. 

o The proceedings will be audio recorded or summarized in writing to create 

a record. 

5. Outcome 

o Following the hearing, the presiding officer will prepare a brief written 

statement summarizing the proceedings and noting that the employee was 

given the opportunity to respond. 

o A copy of this summary, along with any statement the employee wishes to 

provide, will be placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

o No employment action (reinstatement, compensation, damages) will be 

ordered as part of this hearing. 

 

VII. Confidentiality 

Personnel files remain confidential under North Carolina law (N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-

168), except for public records required by statute. However, the hearing record and the 

employee’s statement will be retained as part of the personnel record. 

 

VIII. Non-Retaliation 

The Town prohibits retaliation against any employee for requesting or participating in a 

name-clearing hearing. 

 

IX. Effective Date 

This policy shall take effect on October 14, 2025 and shall be incorporated into the 

Town’s personnel policy manual. 

108

Item 9.



4 
 

 

109

Item 9.



110

Item 10.



111

Item 10.



112

Item 10.



PINEVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 

Crime Goals 

Below is the evaluation of the police department’s crime goals. Goals are measured for 12 
months based on the fiscal year. For the year of July 2025 – June 2026, the goal is to reduce 
violent crime and reduce all crime by 5%.  

 

Goal #1: Violent Crime 

 

 

 

 

Comparison to Jul ‘24 to Sep ‘24: +2 

Comparison to Jul to Aug 3-Year Average: -10%  

7

4

6

5

3

7

10

2

5

4

6

4

8

6

5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Goal #1: Violent Crime

24/25 25/26 3-YR AVG

113

Item 10.



Group A Crime (All Crime)  

* data is subject to change; unfounded removed 

 

 

 

Monthly Crime Statistics 

Below is a table and bar graph of the counts for Part 1 Crimes in September. For 
comparison, the same is shown for the past 3 years. The average of the 3 years was 
calculated.  

 

 

 

 
* ETJ 

statistics 

included in 

total 

number of 

offenses  

 

Comparison to Jul ‘24 to Sep ‘24: -7% 

Comparison to Jul to Sep 3 Year Avg: -11% 

172

150 151
138

155 159
144 143

156

129
122 126

142

162

138

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Group A Offenses

24/25 25/26 3-YR AVG

114

Item 10.



 

Top Crimes Mapped 

Property crime makes up the majority of our crime. Specifically, these crimes are 
shoplifting, theft from motor vehicle, all other larceny, burglary and motor vehicle theft. 
The heat map below shows these crimes mapped and their hot spots. Hot spots include 
Carolina Place Mall, Public Storage (Pineville Rd), Lowe’s and Family Dollar.  

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Homicide Rape Robbery Aggravated
Assault

Burglary Larceny Motor Vehicle
Theft

C
ri

m
e

 C
o

u
n

t

September Part 1 Crimes 

2025 2024 2023 2022 3 Year Average

115

Item 10.



Calls for Service 

The graphs below display the number of calls for service in comparison to previous 
months, year, and 3-year average. The first graph is citizen-generated calls. The second 
graph is officer-generated calls. The final graph is the ETJ. 

 

 

 
*zone checks and foot patrols removed 

 

768
695

758
797 811

778 805 795
719

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

C
al

l C
o

u
n

t

Citizen Generated Calls for Service

2024 2025 3 Year Avg

303 307

386 404

309
321

277

331

564

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

C
al

l C
o

u
n

t

Officer-Generated Calls for Service

2024 2025 3 Year Avg

116

Item 10.



 

 

Zone Checks and Foot Patrols 

 

 

 

44

30

44
47

44
40 38

31

37

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

C
al

l C
o

u
n

t
ETJ Calls for Service 

2025 2024

777

977
734

1459

999 976
784

1084 1007

69

55

72

67

53 47

51

58
83

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

September 2025 Zone Checks and Foot Patrols

2025 Zone Check 2025 Foot Patrol 2024 2023

117

Item 10.



September Traffic Enforcement 

Traffic Enforcement Type and Dispositions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*Officer Generated Stops  

 

 

Locations of Traffic Enforcement 
Street Count 

PINEVILLE-MATTHEWS RD 109 

MAIN ST 41 

CAROLINA PLACE PKY 31 

POLK ST 26 

PARK RD 26 

LEE ST 9 

ROCK HILL-PINEVILLE RD 7 

LANCASTER HWY 6 

LEITNER DR 5 

Towne Centre BLVD 5 

MCMULLEN CREEK PKY 5 

CRANFORD DR 5 

INDUSTRIAL DR 5 

CENTRUM PKY 4 

PINEVILLE RD 4 

JOHNSTON RD 4 

DOWNS CIR 3 

FRANKLIN ST 3 

JACK HUGHES LN 3 

COMMERCE DR 3 

MCCULLOUGH CLUB DR 3 

CADILLAC ST 3 

NOT LISTED 2 

I-485 INNER HWY 2 

LOWRY ST 2 

118

Item 10.



ROCK HILL-PINEVILLE RD @ IVEYBROOK LN 1 

WILLOW RIDGE RD 1 

s. blvd @ 485 bridge 1 

CANNAMELA DR/CRANFORD DR  1 

LAKEVIEW DR 1 

485 RAMP INNER 1 

S BLVD @ LONGLEAF DR 1 

DOWNS RD/51 1 

CAROLINA LOGISTICS DR @ GRANGER 1 

JOHNSTON RD/CORPORATE CENTER DR 1 

485 INNER EXIT RAMP 1 

51/ BLUE HERON 1 

REID LN 1 

BACKSIDE TRIDENT SMILE ON ROCK HILL PINEVILLE 1 

WINDY PINES WAY 1 

BLUE HERON & CASTLE PINE 1 

MATTHEWS-MINT HILL RD 1 

S BLVD @ 485 1 

EXTENDED STAY AMERICA  1 

s blvd near carolina pavillion 1 

CHURCH ST 1 

SABAL POINT DR 1 

MUSKERRY DR 1 

WESTINGHOUSE BLVD 1 

OAKLEY AVE 1 

WILSON GROVE RD 1 

PAPAS HOUSE PVA 1 

51 PAST MCMULLEN TOWARD JOHNSTON 1 

51 IN FRONT OF KPOT 1 

Grand Total 345 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

119

Item 10.



September Co-Responder Activity  

28 Clients 

    14 Adult Mental Health 

    1 Adult Mental Health/Homelessness 

    1 Adult Mental Health/ Substance Use 

    2 Substance Use/Family Conflict 

    2 Family Conflict 

    4 Homelessness 

    4 Child Mental Health 

 

22 Initial Contacts 

14 from calls for service 

1 from outreach 

7 from referrals     

 

   Of those 22 initial contacts:  

        12 were diverted from the hospital 

        4 were diverted from Jail 

        1 arrested 

        4 were hospitalized 

        1 refused services 

 

52 Follow-Up Contacts 

 

 

 

 

120

Item 10.



September Community Engagement  

· 9/2 Pineville Neighbors Place Events Committee Meeting 

· 9/9 Car seat installation 

· 9/10 Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

· 9/11 Mental Health Speaks event at Pineville Church 

· 9/11 Fall Fest meeting 

· 9/15 Meeting with Harrison Untied Methodist 

· 9/16 CPTED for Pineville Neighbors Place 

· 9/17 Radiation test for Control Southeast 

· 9/17 Drug box drop 

· 9/17 Car seat install 

· 9/18 Website review 

· 9/18 Walkabout Ascent 

· 9/19 Bingo at the Laurels 

· 9/22 Meeting with QCD 

· 9/23 Walkabout Pineville Forest 

· 9/24 Grant online class 

· 9/24 Radiation test Control Southeast 

· 9/25 Presentation to Seniors at Belle 

· 9/25 PNP Bingo at Middle James 

· 9/25 Lunch with Hotels for crime stats 

· 9/25 Fall Fest Meeting 

· 9/26 Meeting for School bike event 

· 9/26 Homeless Taskforce meeting 

· 9/26 Bingo at the Haven 

· 9/30 Meeting with Center Shot at Pineville Church 

 

121

Item 10.



 

 

122

Item 10.



 

 

Human Resources 

Linda Gaddy, PHR SHRM-CP MSHR 

lgaddy@pinevillenc.gov 

(704) 889-2362

 
To: Ryan Spitzer, Town Manager 

Members of the Town Council  

From:  Linda Gaddy  

Date: 10/7/2025 

Re: Human Resources Monthly Report  

 

Ryan,  

 

Enclosed is the Human Resources Department Monthly Report for the month of September 2025. 

 

New Hires: 

none 

 

Resignation/Termination: 

Harley Wallace, Public Works Maintenance Technician 

Emma-Claire Zecchini, B.L.E.T. trainee 

Jawan Jones, B.L.E.T. trainee 

 

Retirements: 

Linda Gaddy, Human Resource Director, Nov 1st 

 

Transfers: 

none 

 

Promotions: 

none 

 

 

Current Openings: 

Police Officer: 3 openings for lateral hire, receiving applications 

911 Telecommunicator, 1 opening after a trainer becomes available, receiving applications 

Human Resources Director, completed interviews, making offer 

Public Works – Maintenance Technician, interviews in progress 

Parks & Rec – P/T Recreation Assistant 

Public Works – Building Maintenance Supervisor, posting job opening 

 

 

 

 

123

Item 10.



Departmental Update:  

 

Employee Appreciation and events: 

All staff have been invited to a showing of the movie “Roofman” that was filmed in Pineville last 

year. One complimentary ticket was provide to each employee for Friday October 10th at the AMC 

Theater Pineville 

 

The town’s Trunk or Treat event is Friday October 24 from 5:00 – 6:30 pm. Employee groups are 

planning their trunks and costumes. 

 

The annual Holiday Party is planned for Friday, December 19th at 11:00 am at Spare Time 

Entertainment. Please plan to join us! 

 

Employees were invited to consider donating to the Safe Alliance Domestic Violence Shelter during 

their campaign this month due to our Police Department’s close relationship with the Shelter. 

 

We continue to reward police officers who achieve an NC Law Enforcement certificate or an 

education degree with additional pay, as well as those internal second language interpreters with 

additional pay, and recognize all kinds of staff achievements in the employee newsletter The Pine 

Needle every month. 

 

Recruiting: 

We are seeking three experienced Police Officers and B.L.E.T. trainees for the next class session. 

We also have a few trainees attending B.L.E.T. classes that began in June and July. We are seeking 

our next Human Resource Director, a Public Works Maintenance Technician, a Parks & Rec P/T 

Recreation Assistant, and a Public Works – Building Maintenance Supervisor. 

 

Wellness: 

We are encouraging employees to get influenza vaccinations in the next two months by providing 

paid time to go get the vaccination nearby. We do not have a large enough group to get a provider to 

offer these on-site, but health insurance does cover the cost. 

We continue to issue reimbursements to employees through the wellness benefit which rewards and 

encourages healthy living (physical, financial and lifestyle wellness). Budgeted wellness dollars 

reimburse employees for approved expenses in a wide range of categories to fit all lifestyles. They 

can each claim up to $600 of reimbursement during the benefit/fiscal year. This has been a popular 

program, therefore we have continued it this year. This encourages the staff to take care of 

themselves, which also benefits the Town in many ways from lower turnover, higher productivity 

and less missed work, as well as lower medical claims. 

We are also planning a new employee resource group that will be formed to get employee feedback 

and ideas for wellness and appreciation needs and ideas. Representatives of each employee group 

would meet once a month to develop plans for both wellness and appreciation and how best to 

communicate and involve all staff. Various staff have shown interest in different wellness initiatives, 

so this group will focus on finding out what is top priority for our staff. 

 

The next Destress and Refresh event is planned for November. 

124

Item 10.



Safety: 

We had two incidents in September, one deemed not preventable and one deemed preventable by 

practicing safer driving habits.  

 

The hearing test van was here in September which conducted annual hearing tests for those who 

operate equipment that can affect their hearing. Everyone who tested is receiving their results and 

any recommendations for follow up. Our safety consultant conducted our annual mock OSHA self-

inspections. Safety equipment inspections by our vendor are scheduled for October 9th at all of our 

facilities.  

 

All staff are completing cyber security user safety training this month. This is new training for our 

existing staff. It will also be required training for all new hires to reduce the risk of data breaches. 

 

The Town is beginning the process of applying for Safety matching grants from the North Carolina 

League of Municipalities. Any approved grant funds will help us improve safety and security in one 

or more of our departments. 

 

Performance Management:  

Annual performance reviews and goal setting that were completed in August for all employees 

(except sworn Police personnel who have their reviews on their anniversary dates) were translated 

into annual merit increases that were effective 9/3/2025. The next formal check-in of performance 

and goals will be the mid-year check-ins in January/February. Sworn officers and Firefighters 

continue to receive annual reviews on their anniversary dates throughout the year. 

 

 

125

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

1 
 

We’re thrilled to announce the opening of the McCullough Greenway, creating a much-anticipated connection 

between the McCullough Neighborhood, Jack Hughes Park, and Downtown Pineville. This addition enhances 

walkability and brings our community even closer together. 

Youth Girls Volleyball is in full swing, with our young athletes showing impressive improvement each day. 

Games are now underway, and the energy in the gym is contagious! 

Pineville Youth Soccer is also in season, with teams practicing daily on our multipurpose field and competing in 

Saturday games. The enthusiasm and teamwork on display are fantastic. 

Our Adult Basketball League has officially tipped off, and the competition has heated up as league games 

begin. It's shaping up to be a thrilling season! 

The 3rd Annual Pineville 4 Miler was a big success! We had perfect weather and an incredible turnout—130 

registrants enjoyed the scenic run along the Mecklenburg County Greenway.  

Bingo is back! We relaunched the program in September with 40 enthusiastic participants. It’s great to see our 

community gathering for fun and fellowship again. 

A special thank you to Shi for leading a memorable trip with 12 of our seniors to Memory Lane in Mooresville, 

where they explored over 100 antique cars—a truly nostalgic and enjoyable day. 

Music on Main rocked the month of September with four fantastic concerts that brought great music and even 

better crowds to our downtown area. 

We also launched a brand-new program: Teen Night! On September 26th, 16 local teens enjoyed a movie night 

followed by a lively disco. It was a fun and safe evening designed just for them—and we’re excited for more to 

come! 

 

126

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

2 
 

 

 

  

 

127

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

3 
 

  

  

  

128

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

4 
 

  

 

 

129

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

5 
 

General Programming – Belle Johnston 

Pickleball: Wednesday evenings, Saturday Mornings – 58 participants 

Karate: Wednesdays -  23 participants 

Cookie Decorating – 9/18 – 14 participants 

Paint Class- 9/15 – 15  participants 

Sound Bath Class – 6 participants 

Cardio Funk – Tuesdays – 23 participants 

Pottery Workshop – September 27 – 20 participants 

Senior Drive Thru – September 3 – 54 participants 

Grab n Go for Kids – September 22 – 38 participants 

Pre-school Open Gym – Wednesday mornings. 45 participants 

ASAP Pickleball – Thursday mornings. 48 participants 

Family Bingo Night – September 12 – 40 participants 

Teen Night – September 26 – 16 participants 

Senior Field Trip – Memory Lane – 9/18 – 12 participants 

Senior Game Day – 9/19 – 23 participants 

Lake Park  
 
Bootcamp with Cam – Bootcamp meets 5:45am – 6:45am M/W/F in Lake Park. 6 participated 

Tai Chi – Thursday evenings and Saturday mornings – 11 participants 

Storytime in the Park – Wednesdays – 114 kids/101 adults 

 

The Hut 
 

Senior Fit – Senior Fit takes place at the Hut M – Thursdays.  195 participants 

Yoga – 62 participants 

130

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

6 
 

 
Facility Rentals 

 
 
The Hut: 1 Rental  

The BJCC Dining Room: 3 Rentals 

Large Shelter: 6 Rentals 

Medium Shelter: 12 Rentals 

Tot Lot at Lake Park: 3 Rentals 

Shelter 1 at JH: 0 Rentals  

Shelter 2 at JH: 0 Rentals 

Shelter 3 at JH: 0 Rentals 

 

Jack Hughes 
 

Youth Athletics 
Youth soccer practices continued in September. Games started on September 7th.  
Youth volleyball drafts were held on September 4th. Volleyball practices started on September 9th. Games started 
on September 20th. 
 

Adult Athletics 
Adult basketball games continued throughout September with games on Wednesdays.  
 

Jack Hughes Tournaments/Special Events 

September 6-7: Perfect Game Tournament 
September 13-14: Perfect Game Tournament 
September 20-21: Perfect Game Tournament 
September 27-28: Perfect Game Tournament (Saturday Rained Out) 
 

Baseball Field Usage 
On Deck continued their fall season on Fields 1, 2, & 4 in September.  
PCAA continued their fall season on Fields 1, 2, and 4 in September.  
Charlotte Catholic began fall workouts on the stadium and Field 1 in September. 
 

Multipurpose Field Usage  
Pineville Soccer utilized Field 3 in September for practices and games. 
Hope Soccer began their fall season on field 3 in September. 

 

131

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

7 
 

Social Media 
Facebook 

Post Reach: 807   Views: 26,230 

Total Page Followers: 6.6K  New Follows: 26 

Total Like: 5.1K 

 

Instagram 

New Followers: +82  Total Followers: 3,858 

 

Park Maintenance Update 

Lake Park 

Daily Check 

Weekly mowing 

Monthly Building inspections 

Aerated seeded and fertilized entire park 

Trimmed shrubbery at the Belle 

Bridge repair large shelter 

Zipline repair 

Sprayed weeds as needed 

Repaired water fountain 

Pulled all rocks up on shoreline of lake to prevent erosion 

Trimmed shrubbery at playgrounds 

Hut 

Weekly mowing 

Trash removal 

Monthly building inspections 

Overseen mulch blowing 

Jack Hughes 

Daily field preparation 

Tournament preparation 

Weekly mowing 

Aerated seeded and fertilized entire park 

Replaced irrigation valve field 2 

Paint Soccer fields 

Equipment maintenance as needed 

 

132

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

8 
 

Cemetery 

Cut as needed 

Limb Removal as needed 

Town Hall Pd 

Daily fountain check 

Remove trash as needed 

Trimmed shrubbery at the rear of PD 

Blow and spray weeds in parking lot and fence line 

Removed fallen limbs and clean up near railroad tracks 

McCullough Greenway 

Installed new gate to access electrical switch station 

Dug holes for new pole lights 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

133

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

9 
 

Upcoming Events 

 

 

 

134

Item 10.



Parks and Recreation Department Update 

September 

 2025 

 

10 
 

 
 

 
 

135

Item 10.



Department Update 

To: Town Council  

From: Travis Morgan 

Date: 10/14/2025 

 

Re: Town Planning Updates 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PLANNING:  

Johnston Realignment: Reimbursement request thus far was approved.  

 

Lancaster Hwy CDBG Sidewalk: Completing final grant reimbursement preparations.   

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CODE ENFORCEMENT: 

Dumpster:  
323 Main St 
11319 Treebark 
Lighting: 
10330 Stineway 
10334 Stineway 
Fence: 
260 Eden 
Commercial Vehicle: 
11715 Carolina Place 
Development without Permit: 
265 Eden 

Parking on the lawn: 
9628 Industrial 
122 Olive 
Signs:  
Parcel ID: 20508679 
10305 Osprey 
11812 Carolina Place 
10710 Copperfield 
111 Juanita 
208 Main 
10860 Park Rd  
Community Appearance/Junk 
Vehicle:  
10903 Copperfield 
208 Main 
904 Cone 
1010 Cone 
11535 Wilson Mill 
11415 Carolina Place 
12228 Park Rd 
605 Towne Centre Bv(homeless 
camp) 
Yard Waste: 
415 Park Av 
 
 

Grass:  
100 College St 
209 Franklin St 
10256 Industrial 
213 Eden 
292 Eden 
10317 Osprey 
10319 Osprey 
11307 Treebark 
705 Main 
10215 Mcintyre 
2612 Overlook 
2608 Overlook 
10201 Sam Meeks 
402 Cranford 
704 S Polk  

136

Item 10.



137

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 1.	Approval of the Minutes
	Town Council Minutes 90925
	Work Session Minutes 92225

	Item 3.	Consent Agenda
	RESOLUTION 2025-16 for Surplus items

	Item 4.	Consent Agenda
	Fire Prevention Week Proclamation 2025

	Item 5.	Consent Agenda
	Domestic Abuse Proclamation 2025

	Item 6.	Consent Agenda
	Agenda Item - BA26-3 10 FEMA.Fire $396K

	Item 7.	Consent Agenda
	Council Agenda Item Form Minutes Correction
	Work Session Minutes 42825

	Item 8.	New Business
	Cover sheet Award of Contract for Below Grade work for New Substation
	Pineville D4 Fnd and Below Grade Recommend
	Pineville D4 Fnd and Below Grade Bid Tab
	Foundations and Below Grade Construction of Delivery 4 Substation_HUX Bid_Optimized
	RESOLUTION 2025-17 for Award of Contract Southern

	Item 9.	New Business
	Council Agenda Item Form_Name Clearing
	Name Clearing Policy

	Item 10.	Monthly Reports
	PublicWorksReport 101425
	PD Monthly Report 101425
	HR Report Sept 2025
	Monthly Parks & Rec report
	Oct staff update

	Item 11.	Calendars for Council
	November calendar

	Bottom

